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MISSION

To produce Automotive Wheels and Allied
Products of International Quality Standard of ISO
9002 and contribute towards national economy

by import substitution, exports, taxation,
employment and consistently compensate the
stake holders through stable returns.
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Sved Haroon Rashid
Chairman (Mon-Executive Director)

Syed Haroon Rashid has over bwenty wears of experience in comorate finance and strategic
manadement havingswarked in warious financial as swell as non-financial institutions. He started his
career with the Experts Adwisary Cell, 8 successar to the Board of Industrial Manaogement,
established o assist the Ministny of Froduction in the management & cantrol, corporate planning
and perfommance evalluation of public sector industrial entemprizes in sectars randing from ferilizer,
automobiles, heawy engineering, chemicals, petroleum, cement to steel.

Subsedguently, he serned as Advizar with the Investment Corporation. of Pakistan which was the
first closed-end mutual fund established in Pakistan in the early 1960'%. Later, he joined the
ZaraiTaragiati Bank Ltd. as part of & senior manadement team fanmned for the restructuring of the
Bank where he semved as Head, Restructuring (Project Loans) as well a3 Head, Project
[mplementation Lnit of the Asian Development Bank: He plaved a major rale in restructuring of
corporate loan departments of the arganization and swarked to successtully revitalize them. He is
alsn a training consultant with the Blational Institute of Banking and Finance, Islamabad {State
Bank of Pakistan).

Syed Haroon Rashid has also sered as MNIT's (Mational [nvestrent Trust Director on Boards of
warinous public listed companies. He is also & Cedified Director of the IFC (torld Bank Groug
sponsored by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (RICGE)

Mr. Razak H. M. Bengali
Managing Director fCEQ {Executive Director)

hir. Razak Haji Mohammed Bengali helongs to an industrialist family which has heen in business
sihce 15947, After graduating in First Class First Position in commerce fraom Karachi, he joined
Siemens and proceeded to Germany where he received business education in German lanouage
and passedihe examination of Industrial Businessmen feguivalentio MBA).

After coming back from Germany, he remained associated with his family business for about 30
wvears, At present, he is the Chief Executive of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (an engineering unit
producing automaotive steelwheel rims), which position he has been holding since July, 1998,

He has been the Chairman of Filament Yarn Manufacturers Association, and ¥ice President of the
Emplovers Federation of Fakistan.

Also, he has been the President and Vice President of Pakistan German Business Forum (PGHEF)
for a long number of years. He made this institution active and vibrant which has the recognition
and support of varous Government organizations and the business people in Pakistan and in
GEFmany.

He hialds the membership ofthe following social hodies:

1. Member and Fast President of Karachi Gymkhana
2. WMember of Karachi Boat Club

3. ember of Rotane Club of Karachi Continental

4 ember of Defence Authority Country & Galf Club

Alzn, he has paricipated in various intemational seminars, and has widely traveled around the
globe. Besides English and Urdu, he iswell-versed in German languane.



Mr. Muhamimad Siddigue Misri
Director Marketing ! Business Development (Executive Director)

mr. Muhammad Siddigue Misr s a Graduate from Sindh University. After graduation, he
proceeded to Saudi Arabia and started his business of trading, imports and distribotion of food
iterms from 1982 and captured a largermarket share in this field in Saudi Arahia.

He catme back to Pakistan and set up a food processing industry with the name of Zaiga Food
Industries in the vear 1995, The unitis engaged in processing of spices and other foods items and
i exports of the same tothe gulfcountries, the Middle East, the UK, the LISA and the Canada.

[n the year 1998 he took over with the association of his friends the management of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited, and since then he is invalved in managing and running the company with
dedication and hard-work. Heis a man ofwisdom and possesses husiness acumen.

He has heen the member of Managing Committee of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of
Commerce & Industry, He has also semed as the Chainman of Pakistan Association of Automaotive
FParts & Accessories Manufacturers (PAARPANMY and plaved an active role for the growth of
Yending Industry aswell as for the Auto Industry inthe Country,

Mr. Muhamimad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer {(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad |rfan Ghani joined Baluchistan Wheels Ltd as Chief Operating Officer {C.0.0Y in
the vear 1996 and took the responsibility of planning and production. He has beeninstrumental in
the balancing modemization and expansion of warious Flant facilities at BWL. He has ower 30
wears of experience in the field of manufacturing, marketing & administration. He has been
associated with various business groups. He is cedified Director and had successfully completed
Directar's Training Programime from the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Mr. Anis Wahah Zuberi
Independent Director

hir. AnisWahab Zuberiis an independent Director and he is a Chatered Accountant and a fellow
of the Institute of the Charered Accountants in England and Wales and Fakistan. He carries a
vast expetience of teaching, management of large scale industiies, investment and financing. He
has been associated with Mational Investment Trust (MIT) and has sened onthe Board of various
companies as a nominee Directar af MIT. He has attended various seminars and |ectures in the
process of confinuing professional development and have been associated with Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {(ICAPY Committee for Technical Services and also semved as
a memhber of Giuality Assurance Board of ITAF,

He i a Cetdified Director and biad completed Director's Training Programime from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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Mr. Aamir Amin
Non-Executive Director (Nominee NIT)

hdr. Aamit Aminis at present Head of Finance of Mational Investment Trust Limited. Mr. Aminis a
Chatrtered Accountant by profession from Institute of Chatered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP)
with training from Ernst & Youndg — Pakistan. He g also a Cerdtified Information Systems Auditor
(2158, He has work experience of over 18 years, substantially in financial senices industry and
alsorepresentsMIT as Mominee Director on various Boards.

Mr. Ifan Ahmed Qureshi
Independent Director

fir. Irfan Ahmed Cureshi has owver 30 years of wersatile experience in the fields of
Investment-Banking, Feasibility Studies of projects and its implementation by raising eguity &
debt Leasing; Finance and Corporate affairs and Manufacturing, He had been associated with
Baluchistan Wheels Ltd (BWL) for over 15 years in various capacities as company secretany,
Head of Finance & Director onthe Board. He retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2014
and iz werd well versed with the Auto Yending and Assembly Industry. He is a Commerce
Graduate and an MBA besides he is alzo a member of Institute of Charered Secretaries and
Managers,

Mr. Muhammad Javed
Independent Director

hitr, Muhammad Javed is a Mechanical Engineer and life time member of Pakistan Endineedng
Council. He had foreign training in Japan and visits to China, Taiwan, Malavsia, Hethedands,
Turkey and India for technical agreement, selection ftesting and development of plant machinery
and egquipment.

He has over 40 years' experience of manading endgineering and automobile wheel industry. He
retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015 after sening 31years at various positions,
Head of Technical Division and Director on Board and executed projects of Plant Expansion
EMadernization.

Mrs. Saba Hadeem
Hon-Executive Director

hirs. Saba Madeem belonos to a business famil. She has done A'Levels. Also, she has done
Diploma in Interior Designing from the Indus YWalley School of Az, and remained involed in
activities like Fabiic Painting and Glass Painting. She has been a teacher in a grammar school in
Clifton, Karachi.

She iz a Cerdified Director and had completed Director Education Cedification Programme from
the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (1CMAR).

She has developed & special interest in being involved in husiness and commerce and, therefore,
she haschosento be on the Board of Directars of Baluchistan Wheels Limited.



Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Managing Director MChief Executive Officer Directar Marketing: f Business Development Chief Cperating Officer
[Executive Director) {Executive Directar) [Execitive Director)

Mr. Muhammad ¥asin Yunus Ladha
Chief Financial Officer / Sr. General Manager {Finance)

hir. Muhammad Yasin Ladhaisan associate ofthe [nstitute of Chatered Accountants of
Fakistan (hCARY & a fellow of the Institute of Cost & ManagementAccountants of Fakistan
(CMAP). Besidesthis heis alsofellow memberof Chatered Secretaries, Cedified Internal
ControlAuditor (LSAY and TRA (LK),

He has over thirty vears of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation & Corporate
Affairs, He hasworked in various multinational fpublic listed companies. Heis associatedwith
the Company since 1996, Presently, he is Chief Financial Officer / Sr.General Manager
(Finance).

Mr. Sajid Nadri
Sr. General Manager (Technical)

hr. Sajid Madriis associated with the Company since 18997, He is a Mechanical Engineerand has
donescores of Technical and Management courses and is associated with the Autamobil Indu sty
since last 39 vears. He has gained extensive experience in manufacturing engineering

and hasthe specialization and core experience of SheetMetal Tools, Dies, Jigs and Fixtures,
manufacturing and general engineering.

He hasobtained Training from taly, Holland, Japan, and Korea andvastly traveled ahroadto
China, Sinnapore; Thailand, India, Australia etc and inland and aained rich experience.

Lt Col (R) Mehboob Ahmed

m' General Manager (Maintenance)
- -

Lt Sol (R Mehboob Ahmed is Mechanical Engineer {LET), and also hold PGDin Production

‘| F Endgineering (HWLISTY, He has served in the army from 1983-2011 and performed various
~-".-.E!'~ 4 assignments relatedto Technical Exvaluation of'Yehicles & Equipment for repair, maintenance,
“ __,,!, Inspections & supendsion afworkshop for production f guality.

Yersatile expetience in serving with reputed organization including Mational Logistic Cell (LG,
Fakistan Ordinance Factories (FOE)Y, Pakistan Rander and CentralfBase workshops. He joined
Bl in 2014 and currenthy working as General Manader (hMaintenance.
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Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary/ Deputy General Manager (Finance)

Mr. MubhammadAsad Saeed is an associate ofthe Institute of Chaered Accountants
of Pakistan {CAP), He has over twenty vears of experience inthe field of Finance &
Accounts, Taxation, Internal Audit & Corporate Affairs. He haswarked invarious
public listed companies. At present, he isworking as Company Secretan |

Creputy General Manager (Finance).

He iz associstedwith the company since 2007 . In addition he has attendedvarious
seminarsfocaurses fconferances onFinances Taxation fAudit f Corporate &
Financial Reporting fBudget efc.

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani
Deputy General Manager (Supply & Services)

Fumail Iffan Ghani completed his BSc (Hons) Accaunting from
Liniversity of Hull, England and MSc Banking and International Finance
from Cass Business School, Landon, Enagland.

He has previoushworked at Standard Chartered and MIB Bank. wr.
kumailis a progressie minded individualhwho joined us in 201 4.
Currently he isworking as Head of Supph & Services Depadment.

Mr. Fareed Ahdul Razzak
Deputy General Manager {Finance]

hir. Fareed Abduyl Razzak has done his EMBA from karachi, heis
alsomBA (Finance) & MCS. Helis associatedwith the company since
vear 2000 and currenthworking as Deputy General Manager Finance.

¥ -y

He haswast expetienceinthe field of Accounts & Finance, Treasury,
Banking Matters & Corporate Affairs.

Chief Internal Auditor

Hafiz Shoaib Ahmed Chauhan
Chief Internal Auditor

Hafiz ShoaibAhmed Chauhan is an associate of (hstitute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan {CAR). Besides, heis also anAssociate of
FakistanInstitute of Public Finance Accountants and also a Cedified
Internal Controls Auditar,

Currently he isworking as Chieflnternal Auditar. He is associated with
the Company since 201 4. He has over ninevears of experience in the
field of Audit, Finance, Taxation and Corporate Affairs,
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Rupees in '000°

2014 2018 2017 2018 205 2014
LSSETS
Mon Current Azsats
Property plant & equipment 449,881 404 Q67 36T 269 305,947 307,284 301,705
Intengible asset - - - - - -
Long term investments - - - - 1,734 Tdr
Long-temn loans & adwances 3415 3865 4275 3,714 2.998 1,993
Long-term deposits 4 607 A 77T & 063 4,140 5 740 6 7
457 B03 A0, 509 370,607 313,806 R 3 | 360,185
Current f=sets
Stores, spare parts & loose tools Al 240 54, 455 A5,930 46 522 44,018 44 562
Stock-in-trade aza,10a 532,158 518,874 468 655 452,579 498,712
Trade debts 144,187 166 672 05,781 7347 a9 831 65,310
Loans and advances 15,914 24,805 32,502 28,276 15,043 14,548
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 2,347 2,044 1,694 2,869 1287 3,168
Cther receivables 431 azg 2,504 1,962 521 5813
Short term invastments 102 827 A 516 261,671 364,064 - 83,678
Sales tax refundable - net - - 84854 - - 1,792
Taxation - net 128,302 141 608 T A63 - 47041 47 37T
Bank balances 44,994 21,116 27 530 44,051 255,013 28,905
1,015, 947 Q&5 237 1,083,073 1,024 776 Rl X o4 155
TOTAL ASSETS 1,478 Sai 1 463 836 1,459 G680 1,338 682 1,194 24 1,154 340
EGUITY AWD LIGEILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Futhorized Capital
25,000,000 0rd. shares of Rs. 10/- each gal oo 250000 250,000 2a0.000 250,000 250,000
Share Capital 133,343 133 343 133343 133,343 133,343 133,343
Resaries 1154 E7E 1,135 647 107 742 1,062 030 O3 870 877 854
1,288,019 1,268 940 1,241 085 1,185,373 1,077,213 1,011,197
Mon Current Liabilities
Liabiltizs against assets subject to finance lease a9 5,306 40958 - 2569 5,113
Long tarm advances - - - - - 10,002
Long temm deposits 2010 1.710 ard G TOG 1.110
Defamed taxation 38,250 24 958 29,179 19,876 17,502 345,480
A1 249 41,974 35,011 20,622 20,867 51,806
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 120,289 133,409 171,734 116,889 T, TAG To.624
Unclaimed dividend B HdE 5281 4 B35 4,190 3,867 3623
Cumrent portion of
- lighilitie= against asset= subject to finance lease 3747 6 247 2845 2576 24623 3,828
- long tern advance - - - - - 1,442
- long term deposits - - - H36 205 12
Provision for warmanty 1,854 6,033 4,067 ] R ch| 2808
Taxation-net - - - 3,364 - -
Sales tax payable - net 7 046 2802 - 2,287 6,172 -
1a4 282 151 872 183 &84 132,887 A6, 164 91,337

TOTAL EGUITY AND LIBEILITIES 1,473 530 1,462 226 1,459 fa0 1,338 522 1,194 244 1,154,240
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Rupeesin '000°

2018 2018 27 26 20135 2014
Tumower - net 1,587 558 1,882,640 1,533 650 1,471 4558 1,378,332 1,148 425
Cozt of Sales [1,341 776 ] (1,612 676 (1,234 7457 (1,095,311) (1,170, 1487 943 5117
Gorss Profit 2da, T2 269 864 208 005 30347 208,183 199,614
Distribution Costs [, 35 ] (60, 1167 49,4017 (37,9800 3845112 (38696
Administration Expenzes [92 678 92,0757 (86,344 (32.285) (80,7520 01,1530
Cther Expenseas [12.541] [8.284 (14,9771 (20,753 (12,0967 {10,433
Finance Costs [B.791] [1.827) .37 (8271 2,949 (3,109

[156,952] 162,402 (152,100 [141,8500 (134,308 [123,391)
Other Income 5,126 180 25,404 21,505 37,339 9,014
Prafit before Taxation 43,955 107,742 172,209 253,002 111,214 85,237
Taxation [22.443] (19.953) [5.867) 99,7300 (15,278 (16,733
Profit after Taxation 71512 a7 7o oL 153 272 05 0736 G2 S04
Eamings per Share (Rupees) - Basic and Dilutad 3,36 558 O 43 1144 T.149 514

SIGHIFICAHT RATIOS AHD STATISTICS

2019 2018 2017 2016 201 2014
Liguidity & Leverane Ratios:
-Cumrent Ratios 7.0 .31 5.0 T.r3 a1 §.69
-Duick Ratios .05 245 207 384 3.5 2.74
-Liability as.a % of Total Assets 12,59 13.25 14.08 1144 9.80 12,40
-Interest Cower Ratio (Times) 4,84 6691 125 .97 306,93 387 2843
Equity Ratios:
-Break up “alue per Share (Rs) HE.59 0518 8307 88.90 80,749 T4.83
-Dividend as a % of Capital 20000 3000 <00 A0.00 30.00 22480
-Diwidend Yield Ratio/ Cost of Bquity (%) 32T .77 Z.69 617 5.16 529
-Dividend per Share (Rs) 2.00 .00 .00 5.00 3.00 .24
Frofitability Ratics.
-Grozs Profit (%) A543 14.34 19.44 2537 1510 1738
-Operating Profit! %) B3 583 11.32 17.24 828 T.69
-Profit befone Tasi %] 5482 A.r2 11.23 1719 g.07 T2
-Profit after Tax (%) d.a0 4.6 &2 10041 iRl 547
-Retum on Capital BEmployed; %) T.24 &.44 13.58 21,34 10,32 .43
-Eamings per Share (Rs) = .53 043 11.44 T.149 514
-Price Eaning Ratio Times]) 1.4 16,45 15,67 T.05 8.08 8.2y
=Dividend Payout Fatio (%) | 45 A 4214 &3 A0 41,70 43,80
-Dividend Cover (Times) 268 219 2.40 .30 2.40 128
-Capital Tumwer (Times] 1.23 1.48 124 1.24 1.28 1.14
-Retum on Pesets (%) 4.85 f.00 466 1145 2.03 5.93
Turnower/Efficiency Ratios:
-Irventory Tumower RatiofTimes) 2.3 z.v8 227 2.7 225 1.74
-Debtor Tumower Ratio(Times) 10,235 1441 1r.72 2143 22.00 11.51
-Fined A=gets Tumowver RatioTimes) 353 380 418 4.81 .44 326
Flant Capity:
-Plant Capacity Utilisation (%) | 79} | an] | FE | agl | a4 | &3
Share Perforfmance:
- Yearend harket Price per Share E1 .45 10821 148 A0 81,00 58146 42 A0
-High Price per Share during the Year 111.430 160.94 194.00 a5 400 TO .44 a0.o0
-Low Price per Share during the Year E1.135 OO0 2000 5% .00 3320 41.00
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019
R=.in
‘oon”

449,581

3,45

4,607

457,603

50,8

526,105

144,187

15,914

2,347

431

102,827

129,302

44,994

1,015,947

1,473,550

2.:;9 2018

2 R=. in

2018 oL
(%)

(99 494,967
113 3,855
)] 5,777

(9] 504,599

(71| 54,455

(| 532488
(13| 165,572
(361 24,805

15 2.0
(54 92

1764 5,51
(9 141,ﬁm]
45| M

B _ 958,237
073 1,462 836

=l——i——

208 Lo 2007 Lo 2016 Lo 2015

Vs, Rs. i Vs, Rs. i Vs. Rs. i Vs,
2017 'l]lil;l:' 2016 'mil;? 2015 'l]lil;l:l 2014

(") (") (%) (")

35 367,269 20 305947 () 307284 (13
. % . - (100 1739 133
{10) 4,275 15 3,719 24 2,895 500
14 5,063 #3 4140 (28) 5 740 =
34 376,607 20 313806 (1) MTIEL (12
(3 55,93[1 20| 46522 | 4408 )
3| 518,874 11 | 468585 4| 452574 @
73| 95,781 24| 77347 29| ssgs| (@)
247 | 32,592 11| 29278 95| 15,043 1
2 1,694 (41) 2,569 25 2287 (28)
(6&) 2,894 43 19620 277 20 (91)
(98) | 261,671 (26)| 354084 100 4 om
83| 77,553 100 1 ooy | 4r0#t| )
(1007 8,554 100 d I 4 (om
13| 27530 (3E) | 440%| em | 25501 7E2
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014 2019 M=, 2018 o013 2017 2017 M= 2016 2016 W=, 20135 2015 W=, 2014
R=.im 2018 R=.in 2047 ;1 R=.in 2016 R=.im 2013 Rs.in 2014 R=.in
‘oo [%4] oo’ (%) oo [%) ‘ong* [%) ‘oo’ [G4] ‘oo
EQLITY &HD LISEILITIES
Share Capital and
Rasarues
FAuthorized Capital
26,000,000 Ord, shares of
Fiz. 104 each 250,000 240,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Share Capital 138,343 - 133343 - 133343 - 133343 - 133343 - 133343
Rezerves 1,154,E7E 2 1135847 31107 742 5 1,052,030 11 843870 2 877 854
1,288,019 1 1,268,990 2 1241 085 A 01,185373 10 1,077.213 7101197
Mo Current Liabilities
Liabilities against as=ets
zubject to finance leaze 924 21 5,306 7 4,958 100 1 {100 2,569 500 5,113
Long temm advances - - E - E - 1 - . {1000 10,093
Lorig temm deposits 2010 18 1,710 oG avd 35 i %) YOG 367 1,110
Defemed taxation 38,250 ] 34,958 20 29,173 46 19,976 14 17,593 500 35,440
41,249 (2} 41,974 20 35,011 7o 20,622 (1 20,867 (600 51,806
Currert Liabilities
Trade and other pavables 125,289 E3] 133,499 233 171,734 42 115220 45 7O, T 1] 70,624
Unizlgimed dividend E,24E 30 5,28 ] 4,235 146 4,190 E 3,867 7 3623
Shart term borrowings = z 1 5 - -
Current portion of
- liabilitie= against assets
subject to financs leazes 3,747 29 5,257 ] 2948 14 2476 2 2523 (3 3,824
- long tern adwance - 100 - - - - - - E (oo 1,443
- long term deposits = - : - - (1007 bl a0g 205 100y 13
Prowision for warmanty 1,254 03 5,033 24 4,087 18 3445 5 3631 pri] 2,804
Taxation-net - - - - - {100 3,364 100
Sales taw payable - net 7046 100 2,803 100 - [1om) 2,287 63 6,173 100
144,282 a1 131,872 (171 183584 3 132587 ] 06,164 L] 91,337

TOTAL EQUITY AHD

LISEILITIES 1,473 550 073 1462 838 0 1,453 g20 O 1,338 582 12 1,194 244 31,154 340
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

St 20;;55. A 20;3#5' S 2021;35. e 20;315;5. e 202105135. 501_4
R, in 000" Rs.in 000" R in 000" R in ‘000" Rs.in 000" ]
[fa] ("] (%) (%] (0] nao
Turmower - nist 1587558 (181 1332640 23 1,532,650 4 1471558 71378332 0 1048 425
Cost of Sales (24776] 017  [LE12576] 31 [1,234,745] 12 (1,008,211) (5 £1,170,140) 73 (94E311)
Garss Profit dd5782. (@) 2EAgd (1O 238,305 (200 373,347 79 208,133 4 199614
Distribution Costs [dag45)| @8 jeodte) | 2z 43 401] 30 (370800 (1 [e 5110 (0 [ 598)
Administiation Experses | [92 E78] 1 fszors) |7 BE 344) 5 fez2es) 2 fe0.757) 12 71153
Dttier Opersting Expenzes|  [12.541] 51 [8.284] (457 14.977] I8 [20.758) 72 §12.0063 16 (0433
Finance Costs 6,791 252 [1.927] 40 1,278 &7 327 721 [2.040) (5] [3,100]
(1569531 () [(62.402) 7 [152,100] 7 (141,850) B (134.308) o (1301
Bither Income 5425 2748 480 (a0 25 404 18 21,505 (4] 37,230 314 o014
Profit before Taxation 93355 (3 1077dr (T 172,204 (32) 253,002 127 111214 30 85 237
Taxation [22,443) 12 [19.353)  (56) (45 ,367) (54) (99,7300 853 (15,278) {8y (16,733)
Profit after Tawation  _B1S12 09 2iies (21D lzeze (19 183303 B0 PEO3E 40 BI04

Earnings per Share-
Bazic and Diluted
[Rupees=] adk e Ead 31 9.44 (18 11.48 it 7.18 40 514
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2013 2012 2017 2016 2013 2014

R=iin 000 % R=.in'000°| % Rz.in 000 % Rz.in 000 % Rz.in 000 % Rz in'000°| %

ASEETS
Hon Current 8ssets

Property,plant & equipment 449,581 305 434 967 338 IET2E9 2532 305947 224 307,284 257 381,705 204
Lang temm investments - oo - 0.0 - 0o - 0.0 1,739 0.1 47 0.1
Long-term loans & advances N BT 3855 03 4275 0.3 B L B 1 X998 03 18993 D2
Long-temm deposits 4607 0.3 5777 04 5063 0.3 4140 0.3 5740 05 5740 0.5

A7 E0E 31 04,599 344 ATEEOT BB 3306 34 3T TEL 266 360188 312

Current f=sets

Stores, spare parts & loose

toils a0.840 35 Sl 3T 33,930 38 4652 34 4018 57 44850 34
Stock-intrade D23 03 356 SE2ABE 364 Jeorq 55 468 685 250 452573 ATA 4o8.714 432
Trade debt= 144187 9.8 163,578 113 5781 66 T4 458 549,981 a0 65,3100 57
Loans and advances 15914 14 24,805 1.7 x5y 22 20376 22 15,043 1.3 14,845 1.3

Trade deposits and shart term

prepayments 237 p2 20430 oA 1634 DA aed oz 280 02 368 D32
Dther receivables 421 pa - | 2884 D2 1TR6% 01 L0 5813 05
short-tenm investment=s 02827 T 316 0.4 261671 174 354064 265 4 Do BIETH T2
Taxation - net 189.302) &8 14 B08 97 TS5 63 4 0o 4704 38 47377 44
Salestax refundable - net - 0D 5 0.0 3334 D6 4 oo . 0.0 1,793 0.z
Bank I:g'a_lani:eg 44,994 3 118 21 27,530 1.8 24,051 3.3 25,018 1.4 23,905 145

1,015,947 ga.a 932237 G655 1083072 742 1024776 TEG 876483 T4 TO4.155 G2 8

TOTAL DSSETS 1,473,550 1000 1462838 1000 14389680 1000 _1da8.587 1000 1194244 1000 1,154 340 100.0
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2013 2018 2017 2016 20135 2014

Rz.in'000"] Oa Rz in'000' % Rs.in'000°] % Rs.in'000° ] O Rz.in'000' ] O Rz.im'000') O

EQUITY AHD LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Puthorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs.

105 each 230,000 230,000 220,000 250,000 250,000 250,000
Share Capital 133,343 a.0 133,343 a1 133,343 a.1 133343 100 133343 112 133343 116
Rezerres 1154676 Va4 1135647 YPAH 0 107742 TAAG 1.052,030 V8.6 943870 a0 877884 TAD

1288018 874 T2egga0 867 1241083 250 1,185,373 886 1,077,213 a0z 1,011,197 876

Mo Gurrent Lisbilities
Liahilities against assets subjact

to finance laaze 923 0 5,306 0.4 4952 0.3 = 0.0 25609 0.z 5,112 0.4

Long term advances - 0.0 - 0.0 - oo - oo - oo 10,002 09

Long temm deposits 2.0 0.1 1.710 (I a74d 01 G o.o TOG 0.1 1.110 0.1

Detemed taxation 35,250 16 34,948 14 23174 o 19,976 1.4 17 59z 1.5 36,440 3
41,244 ig 41,974 29 335,01 24 20 g2 1.5 20 267 1.7 51,206 45

Currert Lizbilities

Trade and other pavables 125,283 2.4 133,493 a1 17734 [ 118 o889 | &7 T4, Thf 6.7 Ta6M | 64

Unizlaimed dividend G Bk 05 3,281 0.4 4,835 0.3 4,140 0.3 3867 0.3 3.2

Short term bomowing = - 0.o - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0

Curent portion of
- liabilitie= against assets subject

to finance lease 3747 0.3 5257 0.4 z.a4s 0.2 2476 0.z 21423 0.2 3.828 0.3
- -lang term adwance - o.o - o.o - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 1442 0.1
- lang term deposits e 0.o = 0.0 = 0.0 236 0.1 205 0.0 12 o.o

Provision for warranty 1.354 0 5033 0.3 4,067 03 3,445 03 36 0.3 2,808 0.2

Taxation-net - 0.0 - 0. - oo 3,364 0.3 - 0.0 - 0.0

Sales tax pavable - net 7 046 0.5 2802 0.2 - oo 2,287 0.2 G172 0.5 - 0.0

faa.z82 4% 131,872 104 183584 126 132587 09 36, 164 8.1 91,337 74

TOTAL EQUITY AHD

LIABILITIES 1,473 330 1000 1482 838 1000 1453680 1000 1 33E SR 1000 1194344 1000 1,1594.340 10000
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2015 2017 2016 2045 2014
Fein'oon| % | |Rs.incoor] % | |Rsincooo| % | [Rsincooo] s | (Reinooo] % | |Reincooo] g
1587558 100 1882640 oo 1533650 100 1471558 100 1378332 100 1148435 100
[1,341.776] (84520 [1,512.676] (85660 [1.234745) (B0.51) (10082110 (F463) (1,170,149) (54900  (948.511) (32 62)
245782 1543 2699R4 1434 293,905 19.49 W4T EEAT 208,183 15,10 199614 17.38
faads) e | omoae] o | [ean] can | grescy zss | @SS @To | ERess] Gan
fzee) s | prors] damy | (eeg4d] e | @raesy oam | @orEr Gam | FiEn Eam
2541 @7 @2ed) @ad | pagrr] wos | coTEsl o4 | ozoes) @as | ciodaa] @en
(6,791 (045 (1,927 .0 [1.378] (0.0%9) el (O0E) (x40 @z (31087 @027
[156 953 [182,402] [152,100] {141,250 (124,308 {123,301)
5426 DAz 120 0.0 25404 156 21505 146 37230 27 o014 078
93855 5492 107742 E72 172209 1133 253002 17.19 1214 207 95,237 742
[22.443) (1413 [(19.953) (10E)  [45.86F] (2990 (9O.TI0D (6TE)  CISITE) (A1) (I6F3E) (1.46)
71512 450 B7.7E9 4EG 126342 824 153,272 1042 05036 696 62504 547
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Statement of Walue Addition and its Distribution 2019 2018
({Rupeesin "000") Yo (Rupeesin "000") %
Weaalth Generated
Tatal gross revenue and other incame 1,862,283 2,202 363
Brought in materials and setvices 1,208 392 1,509,042
653,591 100 693,321 100
Wealth distribution to stakeholders
To Employees
salaries and wwages inclading retirement benefits 231,790 3545 216997 .30
To Government and Society
Income Tax, Sales Tax, FED: and WiF 283,746 44 92 341 306 4823
ToShareholders
Dividend 25 669 4.05 40,003 577
To providers of Finance
Financial charges for barroved funds E.520 1.00 1,558 0.22
To Company
Retained Profits, Dep and Amorizatin 95 166 14.55 93 457 13.48
653,891 100 693,321 100
Wealth distribution to stakeholders Wealth distribution to stakeholders
2019 2018
mTa Ermaployes s
mTo Ermployees

1863

B To G overtament

annd 5 acdetr

1.00
403

B To Govertmment

anid 5 ociety

To Shateholdars
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B To Prowider of

Fi B ToProwider of
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Finarce
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERAII PERFORMANCE OF
BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROIE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN
ACHIEVING THE COMPANY'S OBJECTIVES:

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Baluchistan “Wheels Limnited (BWL) has performed their
dubies diligently in upheolding the best interest of sharsholders” of the Cornpany and has managed the
affairs of the Compaty in an effective and efficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers and
has performned its dubties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance
1984y, the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Fepulafions 2017 (the Code) and the Rule Book
of the Palistan Stock Exchange (the Ruls Book) where the Company is listed

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2019 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the
Company and achievingits objectives in the following manner;

The Board has ensured that there iz adequate representation of non-executive and
independent directors on the Board and its cornrmittess as required under the Code and that
members of the Board and its respecive comrnittess have adequate skl expenence and
knowrledee to manage the affairs of the Company,

The Board ha: formed an Audit Committee and Human Fesource and Rermmuneration
Cormrmittes and has approved their respective tenmns of references and has assigned adequate
resourees so that the comrmittess perfonn ther responsibilities diigently;

The Board has developed and put in place the dgorous mechanism for an annual evaliation
of its cam performatice and that of its cortnittees and individual directers. The findings of
the annual evaluation dare assessed and re-evaluated by the Board periodically,

The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable
themn to perfonn their dubies in an effective manner and that the five directors of the
Cotnpaiy have cettification unider Directors Training Program (DTF) and two directors of
the Cormpany have the exemption from the requirements of the DTP,

The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its Committess wrere held
with the requisite quonum, all the dedsion making were taken through Board resclubion and
that the mintes of all the mesbingsincluding corrprittess) are appropaately recorded and
rmaintairied,
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The Board has developed a code of conduct sethng forth the professional standards and
cotporate walues adhered through the Company and has developed significant polcies for

stnooth functioning,

All the significant 1ssues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its

cormrittess to strengthen and fonmnaliz e the corporate decision making process;

All the related party transactions executed by the Company were approved by the Board on
the recormmendation of the Audit Commithes,

The Board has ensured that the adequate system of intemal controlis in place and its regular

assessment through self-assessment mechanism and for internal audit activities;

The Board has prepared and approved the ditector’s report and has ensured that the
directers’ repott 15 published wnth the quatterly and annual financal staternent of the
Company and the content of the directors’ report are inaccordance with the requirement of

applicable lgars and regulations;

The Board has ensured the hinng, evaliation and compensation of the Chief Executve and
other key executives inchiding Chief Finandal Officer/Company Secretary, and Head of
Internal Audit;

The Board has ensured that adequate information iz shared arnong its mermbers in a timely
mannet and the Board members are kept abreast of developrnents between meetings; and

The Board has exercisedits powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance
with the relewant lawrs and repulation applicable on the Company and the Board has akways
protifized the Commpliance wath all the applicable lawrs and repulation m tenns of thar
conduct sz directors and exercising ther porers and decision making

The evaluation of the Board’s petformnance is assessed based on those key areas where the
Board requires clanity in order to prowmde hugh level cversight, including the strategie process;
key business dnvers and petforming mulestones, the global econormie enmronment and
competiive context in which the Company operates; the nsk faced by theCormpary’s
business; Board dynarmics; capability and imnfonmation flows.
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Based on the aforsmenbioned, it can reasonably be stated that the Board of BWL has played a key
role in ensunng that the Company cbjectives are not only achisved, but also excesded expectations

through a joint effort with the management team and puidance and oversight by the Board and its
mermnbers.

SEYED HAROON RASHID
Chairmman

September 19, 2019



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their Beport together with the Audited
Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2019,

EUSINESS REVIEW

Owerall at the Mational Lewvel the Sales of Passenger Cars decreased by 4.22% with
the total production of 207,630 units in 2019 as compared to 215,786 units in the
vear 20138, 33,014 LEV's, Vans and Jeepswere sold in 2019 az against 42,006 units in
the year 2013, decreased by 2 1:4%. Auto sales have been decreasing mainly due to
mmetecric rise in prices & multiple price shocks on account of rupee depreciation,
high interest rates and soaring petroleum price. 8,763 Trucks /f Buses were sold in
2019 a= against sales of 10,093 Trucks / Buses in the year 2018, showing a decline of
33% owver last year mainly due to the slowdown of China-Fakistan Economic
Corridor (CPEC), Similarly, the Tractors sales have also been declined to 50,405 units
in the year 2019 as compared to Y0,887 tractors in the wear 20138 which has
decrezzed by 28.9% mainly due to the low production fyield of cotton crop during
the year 2013-19 which iz because of leszer area coming under cultivation for the
crop.

During the year 2018-2019 the company had overall consolidated revenue of R= 1.58
billion as compared to B=2.1.88 billion which is 16% less than the previous year The
car wheels sale was BE=s 887 40 million as compared to Bs. 82557 million in the
previcus yearwhich is 7% more than the previous year. The Truck / Bus wheels zale
was Rs, 154,08 million as compared to Rs, 27965 million in the previous year which
iz 459% less than the last year. Similarly, the Tractor wheels sale was also decreased
to Bs 476.59 million as compared to Rz 732.05 million in the previous year which is
35% less than the previous year. Export sales during the year was Rs 6.84 million as
compared to Rs 7,26 million in the previous year declined by 6%.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The decreasze in turnover of 16% is due to the decline in sales of Truck f Bus and
Tractor wheel which declined by 45% & 359% respectively, whereas there was a
marginal increase of 7% in car wheels zales during the year as compared to the last
vear, The Cost of Sales was Rs 1,34 billion during the year under review as against
E=. 161 billion last year. The gross profit decreased by 9% to Rs. 245,782 million
against R= 269,964 million last year Similarly, the company earned profit after
tazation of R, 71.512 million as compared to Rs, 87.789 million in the previous year,
declined by 18.5%. The devaluation of Pak Rupee resulted in increase in imported
material cost and amid slowdown in obtaining fresh orders from the OEM's
adwerzely affected our gross profit which ultimately impacted our net profit for the
vedr ended 30 June 2019,
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The com parative financial results for the vear 2012 as against the vear 2018 are as follows:

2019 | 2018
(Rs. in ‘000)
Turnover-net 1,587,558 1.882.640
Gross Profit 245,782 269964
Profit before Taxation 03,955 107,742
Profit after Taxation 71,512 87.789
Earnings per Share (Es.) 5.36 6.58

EARNMINGS PER SHARE

Eased on the net profit for the current vear, the sarnings per share is Rs. 5.36 (2015 Es,
£58)

PROPOSED DIVIDEND

The EBcard of Directors have proposed final cash dividend of Es. 2.00 per share {20925) for
the wear ended June 20, 2019 amounting to Bs 26,669 million (2018: Es 2,00 per share 30
Of amounting Rs, 40.003 millicn) at the meeting held on September 19, 2019, for approwval
of members at the Annual General Meseting to be held on October 26, 2019, The finanecial
statemants, however, do not reflect these appropriations in compliance with the applicable
Lawrs.

HUMAN RESOURCE & WELFARE SCHEMES

We firmby believe that our officers, staff and workforce are the backbone of our business.
The managemeant balieves in ancouraging the talented and dedicated employess, who are
fraquently sent for training at home and abroad to update their professional and technical
gkills, Human rescurce policies were designed to ensure best practicas to attract, recruit,
develop and retain highest quality of human capital

Direct and indirect rewards to the workforce like worker-of-the-month award, Hajj Scheme
for both officers and workers, special health allocation and many cther such benefits are in
place, The Labour laws are strictly followed and the company is able to maintain cordial
relationship with CEA Labour Union, The management is also regularly payving bonus to all
the emplovess. WPPF as well as Eid adwvance are also being paid to the workers. The
Companyalso gives workers social security and EQEI pancion benefit / facilities,
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SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT

We are actively marnaging health and safety risks associated with our manufacturing
process and are working towards improving our procedures to reduce and confrol
the risk of accidents or injuries during work & up fill now no serious accident has
takken place during the production, resulting in any major injury or loss of life. All
employees at plant are provided safety appliancefequipments i.e. uniform, shoes,
helmets, ear plugs and gloves goggles ete. during performance of their duties. Fire
fichting system has beern installed to cope with any mishap and full time safety officer
iz employed for this job, In house Fire Fighting and safety training and exercises are
carried out regularly.

The company allows and szhall continue the medical facilities and other facilities as
may be adegquate from time to time for up keep of health of its employees A
dispensary with gualified dispenser has been established in the factory for all types
of treatiment femergency. Services of qualified MBEES doctors have been hired on
retainer ship basis for treatment/emergency of employvees. Workers medical check-
up is conducted by certifving surgeon every six months, Apart from this, healthy
activities of sports are encouraged, and we have a cricket as well as a football team.
Every yvear a picnic is arranged forworliers.

Protection of environment i=s of prime concern, every measure is being taken to
preserve nature and to maintain clean environment at workplaces. Green
envirconment is maintained by planting trees and grass all around the factory. BWL
fully discourages the use of substance of concern and ensure that all the products&
material procured and products manufactured are free from hazardous material,

We comply with all applicable laws and regulations and maintain conditions as per
environmental standards. Design new facilities and conduct operations with
preventive approach and industry best practices to avold adwverse impacts to the
human health and the environment Ensure appropriate training and awareness on
envirconmental systems, procedures, best practices and on shared responsibility
towards environmental protection among employvees, contractors, suppliers and
customers Regularly review environmental performance and carry out audit and set
targets to achieve continuous improvement,

The company has obtained International Certification I1S0-14001 of environment to
meet the International Environmment Standards and has been recertified by the

International Agency,

ENERGY CONSERVATION

Effective measures and steps are being taken to conserve energy, wherever possible
in the area of electricity, ga= and heating system to reduce the consumption of
electricity, gas and fuels etc. In thisregard, a comprehensive plan iz made and
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implemented and production and operations are planned in such a manner that only
gssential plant, are operated in electricity peak hours,

In powder coating Paint shop # 02 new heavy dufy conveyors were installed two
vaars back, the electrical system was old and its complete electrical panels were
redesigned with automation and circuitry to improve it functionality and reduce
power consurnption.,

Light Duty RIM line #1 was installed in 1984 and was having an old design and
inefficient electric confrol panelzs. Mew Electric panels were designed and replaced
with PLC bazed automation and control system to efficiently operate the plant and
machinery and alsc to help reduce consumption of spares and to minimize
downtimme caused due fo non awvailability of old design parts, which have now
become obsolete,

The electricity cost iz increasing day by day. In order to reduce the energy cost and
alzo to support the environment, a study i2 being conducted to introduce and self
generate alternate electricity by installing solar energy system. In this regard,
reliable and well-known companies are contacted and guotations are obtained,
which are under evaluation, and, if found feasible, the sy=tem may be installed. This
will help in cost cut as well as reduction in the burden on the national grid.

Energy monitoring system has been introduced with installation of Electricity
meters at the area’'s and equipment which consumes heavy power, so that
consumption could be monitored and conftrolled.

All  these measures contribute ftowards considerable reduction in power
cornsumption,

UPGRADATION OF PLANT & PROCESS

The company iz producing wheels as per International Standards, and to meet the
customer's product specification and guality requirements, it is necessary that plant
and machinery and process are continuously upgraded and maintained in good
working and operative condition, =0 that we get a satisfactory performance and
mmachine and equipment give a good and longer period of workable life.

FEoreign technical experts are engaged from fime to time and continuous liaison is
maintained with the plant and machinery equipment suppliers for technical advice
and improvement

The requirement of Tractor wheels remains consistent and, most of the machines
used for tractor wheel production are now outdated and have completed their
servicelife. Counter sinking operation on bolt hole on tractor disc is very important
and precision operation requiring high level of accuracy, the 02 number of old multi
spindle machines are planned to be replaced with new latest technology machine
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which will help us in reducing the down time and improve efficiency and accuracy in
the product, thus reducing customer complaint.

By all these measures, the product quality, productivity and customers confidence
and satisfaction have improved which have also caused a significant reduction in
gcrap and rework ratios.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY CONTROL

The Research and Development ([R&D) Department iz constantly engaged to support
the development of new products and production as per customer's satisfaction and
international standards. Owver the years the R&D facilities hawve grown and our
Design Office is now capable of computer aided designing of products, tool & dies,
jigz and fixtures and FEA f Computer analysis of design for confirmation and 3D
model development,

R&D Department has a complete Tool & Die manufacturing shop equipped with the
Conventicnal and CHNC MMachinez for in-house manufacturing of complete set of
Toals, Dies, Fixttures, Jigs, Gauges and running Tooling Spares to meet the production
requiremernt and also support in repair and manufacturing of Machines spares ete.

Our R&D Department has highly experienced and gualified team fto carry out the
repair and maintenance of the preoduction tocling The team i= constantly
endeavoring to improve the process, reduce down titme and rejections by analyzing
and supporting addition of latest equipment, machinery, tooling, etc.

During the wyear, BWL have successfully completed the in-house dewvelopment of
Toaoling for new upcoming models such as Hyundai, Regal, and JAC etc for passenger
carand Van / Pickup,

Wheel being a critical and safety part reguiring very stringent dimensional control is
being manufactured with standard guality control procedures and quality is being
assured right from the material procurement to the final delivery fo the customers.

During the year, in order to meet the customer requirements for run out testing and
low point marking by PAINT MARK and for wheel balancing Existing Run out
gauging machine was modified and third machine was refurbished and installed to
meet the quality requirement.

One of the tests for fatigue life of wheel namely BADIAL FATIGUE TEST i= essential
to establish the design requirement confirmation and performance. In this regard
the Current Installed BADIAL TEST machine was upgraded to cater for the higher
test values and now BWL is fully capable of carrying out the test of Large =size

TERUCK /BUS section based and Tube less wheels,
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Similarly, the wheel being the cuter part requires high standard of quality for paint
life, In thi= regard, previcusly the paint performance tests were carried out from
outsource fOutside the country. Now BWL has installed itz own SALT SPEAY test
machine to conduct this test

Quality Control Department is equipped with the requisite international standard
testing equipment,; ftool and instruments to control the process and to monitor the
guality of wheels. The instruments [/ gauges, guality checking equipment are
regularly up-graded and calibrated to ensure its precision and accuracy, so that
products are produced as per customer quality requirement and this is also
supplemented by the experienced and trained manpower,

COMPANY'S CONTRIEUTION TO THE ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY

Your company being an impeort substitution unit is conftributing to the economy by
saving foreign exchange and iz very important vending industry for the auto
assemblers. During the year under review, your company saved appros § 10 million
foreign exchange reserves on account of supply of wheels to the QEM's and
conftributed to national exchequer by paying income tax sales tax and other indirect
taxes to the tune of Rs 2Y6 million [approms]. Besides, it is also providing
employvment opportunitiez to the local people residing in Hub and other adjoining
argsas.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good
corporate management practice with emphasis on fransparency and disclosures.
The BEoard and management are cognizant of their responsibilities and monitor the
Company's operations and performatrice to enhance the ACCUracy,
comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-financial information.

As part of Compliance of the Listed Companies [(Code of Corporate Governance)
Fegulations, 2017 ["CCG"), the Directors are pleased to state as follows:

2. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company
present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Company have bheen maintained.
. Appropriate accounting policies hawve been consistently applied in

preparation of the financial statements and accounting estimates are based
on reascnable and prudent judgment
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a, International Financial BEeporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of financial statements,

b, The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

¢, There are no significant doubts upon the company s ability to continue as going
COncern.

ey O perating and Financial Data

The Key ogperating and financial data for last six years i= given in this report.
rovernment Taxes

Outetanding Taxes were E=. 7. 046 million as disclosed in the Financial Statements.
Investment of Employees Retirement Funds

The following were the value of investments held by emplayee’s retirement benefits fund
at the yearend:

June 19 { un-audited]}
-  Executive Provident Fund BEs, 89552 million
-  Mon-Executive Provident Fund R5. 37375 miillion
- Gratuity Fund E= 62412 million

Election of Directors

The new Board of Directors was constituted as a result of election of directors held on
May 25, 2019 and accordingly its committees were reconstituted. The new Board
comprises Nine (9] directors which include three (3] independent directars, three [ 3]
non-executive directors and three (3] executive directors. The independentdirectors had
been chosen from the data bank maintained by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Gowvernance [PICG] in terms of Section 166 (1] of the Companies Act 2017, Furthermore,
the independent directors met the justification and selection criteria, as per the
requirement of Section 166 (3] of the Companies Act, 2017, and they have been elected in
the same manner as otherdirectors in terms of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017,

Composition of the Eoard

In line with the requirements of the CCG, the Company encourages representation of
independentand non-executive directors, as well as gsenderdiversity aon its Board.
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The current com position of the Board is as followrs:

Total Number of Directors: 9induding
[a)] Male i 8
(b) Femmale :1

(a) Independent Directors: :3
{b] Non-executive Directors : 3
(c]) Exeaitive Direciors )

The BEoard is responsible for making decisions with respect to important management
maftters, including the execution of important business activities and other matters as
prescribed by law. These decisions are made after deliberating such matters according
to the established criteria, assessing risks and giving such matters due consideration,
The Board is also responsible for supervising and monitoring the conduct of duties.

Board of Directors Meetings

Diuring the wear, five meetings of the Eoard of Directors were held. Attendance by each
Director was as follows:

No. of
Name of Director Meetings
Attended

Sr.
No.

Sved Haroon Bashid

Mr. Razak HM. Eengali

Mr, Mubhammad Siddigue Misri

Mr, Muhammad [rfan Ghani

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi

Sved Zubair Ahmed Shah

Mr, Muhammad Javed

Mr, Irfan Ahmed Qureshi

Mrz, Saba Nadeem

10 M. Aamir Armin (elected welf 25/05 /20159
The leave of absence was granted to the member not attending the Board
meetings.
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Audit Committee Meetings

During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each
Director was as follows:

No. of
5r. No. Name of Director Meetings
Attended
1 Mr, Anis Wahab Zuberi 4
2 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah B
3 Syed Haroon Rashid 4
4 Mr, Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4
5 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

During the year one meeting of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committes
[HR&R) was held. Attendance by each Director was as fallows:

No. of
5r. No. Name of Director Meetings
Attended
1 Syved Zubair Ahmed Shah 1
2 Mr, Muhammad [rfan Ghani 1
3 Mr, Anis Wahah Zuberi 1
4 Mr. Muhammad Javed 1

Directors" Remuneration

Directors Fee is paid in line with Board approval and the Company is in the process of
finalizing a formal policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017
and the CCG.

Directors’ Training

Company stands complied with the requirement of having half of the Directors on the
board Directors Training Program [DTF) certified as prescribed under the sub clause
1{a] of regulation Wo. 20 of the Regulations. Currently five directors of the Company
have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the Company
have the exemption from the reguirements of the Directors’ Training Program. The
remaining directars shall obtain certification under the DTP in due course of time,
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Statement of Complinnce with Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Geovernance)
Reguletions, 2017

There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governatice

and the company has fully complied with requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance] Regulations, 2017, 4 statement tothis effect iz annexed with this report.

Pottern of Shaoreholding

The total number of Company's shareholders as at June 30, 2019 was 1,365 as against 1,357 on
June 30, 2018, The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019 and its dizclosure is included it this
antmal report,

The highest and lowest market prices of the Comparnys shares during 2018-201% were az foll ows;

Highest August 15, 2018 BER 109,90
Lowrest June 27, 201% PERA1.15

fruading in Shares pfihe Comprny by Directors and Executives
Purchase of shares by Directors, Executives, their Spouses and Minor Children is given belown

No of Shares Purchased
| Mrs. Gulbano Razak | s000|

Approintment of Audiiors

The present auditors M/s. EY Ford Bhodes, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2020, Their re-
appointment has been recomimended brrthe Audit Committee,

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BOSINESS PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the company's strategic direction., Annual plang and performatice
taroets for business are set and are reviewed by the Eoard in the light of the company's owverall
ohjectives. The Board is committed to maintain highest standards of good corporate governance,
&5 g leading wheel marmfacturer, reputation for high ethical standards iz critical to business
success, Treatmernt of stakeholders with respect, courtesy and competence, ensuring cdear
conscientiousness inall decisions and operations and onthis basis code of business

principles has been developed and acknowledged byreach Director and employvee of the comp any



NBP AND RELATED MATTERS

MEP suit for recovery against the Company [EWL] and Privatization Commission
[BPC] for payment amounting to Rs. 91,25 million it has paid to PC, which the
Company does not acknowledge as briefly explained at Note No. 23.1 in the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, The case was first heard by Mr. Justice
Faisal Arab during 2008 and the matter was concluded and was reserved the
announcement of judgment. Unfortunately, no judgment was announced and the
matter was sent to the office for fixdng the same,

The case was then heard by Honorable Justice of Sindh High Court Mr. Justice
Salman Talibuddin and waricus hearings were held and the order was expected but
has been sent for final arguments again because of July 31, 2009 decision of the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan where by several Judges were removed and
the Honorable Judge who had heard this matter was also removed.

Thereafter, the matter was again fixed before Mr. Justice Faisal Arab. The case was
reheard and was argued during 2010, During various hearings the parties concluded
their arguments and Mr. Justice Faisal Arab reserved the matter for announcement
of judgment Again no judgment was announced and the matter was sent to the
office for fixing the same for rehearing,

The matter was then fixed before Honorable Justice Mrs. Ashraf Jahan and then
transferred in the Court of Honorable Justice Mr, Justice Aziz ur Rehman who was
transferred to the divisional bench, Then this case was transferred in the Court of
Honorable Justice Muhammad Shafi Siddigui. The case was subsegquently
transferred for administrative reasons to and is now under adjudication before the
Eanking Court No. Il at Karachi. The efforts were made by both the lawyers of EWL
& NEP for concluding the matter. The latest development is that the matter is at the
stage of final arguments. The management and its legal counsel are hopeful that the
ultimate cutcome of the matter will be in Company's favour,

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Demand for Auto Industry declined during the vear 20 18-19 on account of
devaluation of Pak Rupees against the US Dollar aswell as persistent risein interest
rates Pakistan's economy is passing through difficult situation which witnessed
sharpest increase in policy rates / discount rates in recent time by the State Bank of
Pakistan (SEP ), Average inflation for the year 2019-20 is expected to remain in the
range of 11% to 129% due to higher fiscal deficit and Pak Rupee depreciation.



Tax measures announced in the Federal Budget 2019-20 hawve severaly hit the auto
industry. Additional custom duty on imported material, imposition of federal excise
duty, high interest rates coupled with massive depreciation of Pak Rupee adversely
affacted the cost of vehicles and it forced the OEM's to enhance the prices of their
vehicles Consequently, higher prices of vehicles will likely affect sales volume of
auto industry as price hikes will weaker the purchasing / buying power of
customers.

However, as a consequence of Automotive Development policy 2016-2021, several
new players have heavily invested in creating manufacturing / assembly facilities in
anticipation of future growth in Auto Sector. These assemblers introduced their new
models of Car and LCV's and yvour company has successfully developed wheels for
their models as per the International Quality Standards and this will put / bring
positive impact on our future revanue,

Macro economic indicators of the country are challenging for auto industry. Pak
Rupee dewaluation, rising raw material prices, increase in interest rates and
additional tazes and duties are major challenges for auto industry.

The management is aware of the challenges ahead and is continuously evolving
strategies and adopting measures to meet future challenges and maintain business

growth,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We take this opportunity to thank our customers and all the stakeholders who
reposed their trust and confidence in the company and acknowledge the efforts of
the entire BWL team including our staff and workers and lock forward to their
continued support.

May Allah bless us and help us to achieve success for your company and for the
benefit of all stake holders, and the Country in general. Aameen!

For and on Behalf ofthe Board

| F,

7

e r?,f“'}- ——
Razak H.M Bengall Muhammad Slddlque Misri
Chief Executive Director

Karachi: September 19,2019
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on $aturday, October 26, 2019 at11:00 arm at the
Company’s Registered Office, hain RCD Highwaw, Hub Choweki, DistrictLasbella, Baluchistan,
Eligible shareholders are encouragedto participate andvote at General Meetings.

REGISTERED OFRACE

main BCD Highweay, Hub Chowlki
Lashella, Baluchistan.
Telephore # (0853) 365426,5363428

Fax# (0853 364025
E-rnail bwelfin@icyber.net. pk
Website hitp:ffeeenet bvhe el s com

AUDITORS
EY Ford Rhodes
[Chartered Accountants)

LEGAL ADVISOR
Mohsin Tayebaly & Company
[Advocates)

STOCK EXCHANGE USTING
Baluchistan'wheel s Limited islisted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

STOCK CODE/SYMBOL

The stock code/swmbol fortradingin
shares of Baluchistanwheels Limited is
BAHL

SHARE REGISTRAR

THE Associates (Pyvt) Limited
1stFloor, 40-C, Block-6
P.ECHS, Karachi-75400

E-mail:secretariatimthk.com.pk
LAM#492(21) 111-000-322, Direct+92 (21134165270
Fax#+to2 (21) 34168271

TAX CONSULTAHNTS
EY Ford Rhodes
[Chartered Accountants)

BakerTilly Mehmood
Idrees Qamar
[Chartered Accountants)
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INYESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
hir: Muharmmad Asad Saeed
Compahy Secretany
Telephone: (+9221 135650966
Fae (+9221) 35654005

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has proposed afinal cash dividend of Rs._2 /- per share (2018: Rs. 3/~ per share) armourting to s 26,669
i Hlion (2015: Bs 40,003 millian) for thevear ended June 30, 2015,

BOON CLOSURE DATES

Share transter books of the Companwswill remain ol osed and notransfer of shareswill be acceptedfor registration from October 19,

2009 to October2e, 2019 (both days inclusie).

BIVIDERD REMITTANCES

The Board of Directors ofthe Cormpaty i ftheir meeting held on September 19, 2019 hasrecommen deedthe cash dividend of Rs._2 &
pershare, Ifthedividend i s approved at the Annual General Meetingwill be paidwithinthe statutory time limit of 1S working days.

REPORTING

Period Finandal Results
1t Ouarter- september 2018 Octoberds, 2005
?rid Ouarter/Half ¥ early - December 2018 February 15 2019
ord Ouarter- March 2019 Anril 15,2019
fth Quarter/annual- June 2019 septemberls 2019
STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

Drarifig thiesvear, the company hascompliedwith all returns/farimns andfurnished all the relevant particulars as required underthe
repealed Companies Act, 2017 and allied rules the Securities and Exchiange Commission of Pakistan (3ECP) Regulations andthe Listing
Rezulations of Pakistan stock Exchange Limited.

INYESTOR GRIEVARNCES

To date none of the i mwestors or shareholders has filed a e significant complaint against any services provided by the Compary toits
sharehalders. A standard grievancefortn is alao made availabe onthe campary' s website | wawsw. bwhieel s, com

V/EB PRESEMCE

The Compary mairtains afunctional website as per the directions and notfications issued by the SECP. Updatedinformation regarding
the compary can be accessed at itswebsite, wassn Bvhieel s.cormn . Thewebsite contains the latest financial results of the Cormpar with
the Compaty's profile.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner;

1. The total number of directors are 9 as per the following:
a. Male: g
b Female: 1

2 The composition of board is as follows:

Category Mames

Independent Directors M Anis VWahab Zuben
Mr. BMuhammad Javed
Wr. Itfan Abmed Qureshi

Other-Non-Executive Syed Haroon Rashid
Directors

bAr . Aamir Amin
hrs. Saba Nadeem

Executive Directors Mr. Razak H M, Bengall
Mr, WMubhammad Siddigue Misr
Mr. Muhammad Ifan Ghani

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than five listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has dewveloped a wision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the comparny. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.
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6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters hawve been taken by boardd shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. All the meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman. The board has
complied with the reguirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

8 The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures faor
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

4 The Board remain fully compliant wath provision wath regard to Directors' training
program. Qut of total of 8 directors, & directors have completed their trainings earlier and
twio directors are exempt from training program as mentioned in regulation Ma. 20, sub
regulation 2 of the REegulation.

10, The board has approved appointment of CFG, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirement of the regulation.

11. CFQ and CEC duly endarsed the financial statements before approval of the hoard.
12. The board hasformed committees comprising of members given belowy:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. AnisYWWahabh Zuber Chairman
W A amic Amin Member
M. I fan & hmed Cureshi Member
Mrs, Saba Madeem Member
b} HR and Remuneration Committee
M Mubhammad Javed Chairman
=ved Haroon Rashid Memher
M. AnisWahabh Zuber Member
Mr. Mubhammad ifan Ghan Member

1a. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advized to the committee for compliance.

14 The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
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Meetings Frequency
Audit Cominittee Four quarterly meetings were held during the
ninancial year ended June 30, 2015

HRE and Eemuneration Conunittee 2ne meeting was held dunng the fnancial year
ended June 30, 2019

15 The board has set up an effective internal andit functon which is considered suitably
gualified and experenced for the purpose and are conwersant with the polides and
procedures of the company.

14 The statutory auditors of the company have confinmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control reviess program of the ICTAP and registered with
Audit Owersight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm | their spouses
and mincr children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners
are i compliance swith International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the ICAR.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons assodated with them hawve not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

1& e confirm that all other requirements of the Eegulations have been complied with.

SYED HAROON RASHIT
Chairrian
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (the Company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed Lhe enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Cade of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Baluchistan Wheels Limited for the year anded 30 June 2019 In accordance with the requirements
of regulation 40 of the Requlations,

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulalions is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whelher the Statement ol Compliance reflects the status ol
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regifations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to
inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various decuments prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

A% -a part of our audil of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
dpproach. We.are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement an internal
control covers all risks and contrals or Lo form an opinian on the effectiveness of such internal
cantrals, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company o place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Commillee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also epsure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement Lo the extent of the approval of the related party transactfons by the Board of
Directors ypon recommendation of the Audit Committée. We have naol carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whiethe
the retated parly transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or nat,

Based on our review, nothing has come Lo our attention which causes us to believe that the

Statement of Compliance does nol apprapriately reflect the Company's compllance, In all material
respects, with the requirements cantained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the

vear endad 30 June 2019,

Y tod Plow,

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 25 Seplember 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Baluchistan Wheels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cpinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (the Company),
which comprise the stalemenl of tinancial position as al 30 June 2019, and the slatement of profit o
i0ss, the statement of comprehensive incame, the statement of cash flows tor the year then ended,
Lhe staternent of changes In equity, and notes (o the financial statements, Including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information, and we state that we have obtained
all the Informaltion and explanations which, to Lhe best of our knowledge and beliel, were necessary foi
e purprases of the audil.

In our apinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statemenl of comprehensive
incoime, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes In equity together with the notes
forming part thereol conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give theintormation requlred by the Companies Acl, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view ol the state of the Company's affairs as at 30
June 2019 and of the profil, comprehensive income, its cash Hows and the changes In equity for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conductad our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of gur report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Internationat Ethics Standards Board for Accountanis’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by Lhe Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code}and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
we belicve that the audit evidence we have obltained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor

our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audil mallers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance in
our audit of the financial statements of Lthe current period. These malters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
Wi do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

LT
ﬂf{
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Following is the Key audit matter: I

1. Existence and Valuation of Stock In trade

As disclosed In note 9 to the accompanying Cur audit procedures included, amongst others,
financiat statements, the stock in trade balance reviewing the management's procaedures for
constitutes 36% of total assets of the Company. evaluating the MRV of stock-in-trade, observing
The cost of Work in Process {WIP) and finished physical stock counts to ascertain the condition
goods is detarmined al average manufacturing and existence of stock-in-trade, performing
cast Including a proportion of production testing on a sample of items to assess the MNRY /
averheads. valuation of the stock-in-trade held and

) evaluating the adequacy of write down of stock-
We focused on stock in trade as it is a significant | In-trade to NRV as at the year end.

portion af Company’s total assets and it requires

management judgment in determining an Further, we evaluated the appropriateness of
appropriate costing basis-and assessing its the basis of idantification of the absolete stock-
valuation, in-trade and the accuracy of provision far slow

moving stock-in-trade assessed by the
managemernt, on a test basis.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing analysis of
stock-in-trade, on a sample basis and cost of
goods with underlying invoices and expenses
incurred in accordance with stock-in-trade
valuation method.

We also tested the calculations of per unit cost
of finished goods and assessad the
appropriateness of management’s bas|s for the
allecation of cost-and production overheads.

We turther tested the NRY of stock-in-trade by
performing a review of sales close to and
subseguent to the year-end and comparing with
the cost for a sample of products.

We further assessed the adequacy of financial
statement disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framewaoark.

Infarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management s responsible for the other information. The ather infoermation comprises the
Information included in the Annual Repart, but does not Include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Car apinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not exprass
any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
Infarmation and, In doing s, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the linancial statements or our knowledge abtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement af this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard. W

Page 2
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is respansible for the preparation and lair presentation of the financial statemerits
in-accardance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control s management
datermines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or errar.

Inpreparing the financial statements, management is responsibile for assessing the Company's
ability to'continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern anc
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management aither Intends to liguidate the
Company or te cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qlur pbfectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
ara free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to [ssue an auditors® report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee
that an audit conductad In accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are cansiderad materlal
If, individuaily or in tha aggragate, they could reasonably be sxpected to influence the econamie
declsions of Users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Az part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughaout the audit. We also:

= |dentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of thie financial statements, whether due
to fraud orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thosa risks, and abtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinlon. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting fram fraud Is higher than for ane resulting from
arror, as fraud may invalve collusian, Fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, or the
averride of internal control.

=« Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances; but not far the purpose of expressing ar
apinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control,

= [Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
gstimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of tha going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to-events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
tontinue as.a going concern. It we conciude that a material uncartainty axists, wea ara reguirad to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or If
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
syidence oblained up to the date of aur auditor's report. Howaver, future events or conditions
may causa the Company to cease o continue as a going concern,

+« Evaluate the overall presentation, structura and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and
events In a manner that achieves fair presentation. HP’
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In Internal
cantrol that we ldentify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought ta bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
maost significance in the audit of Ehe financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremaly rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Bazed on our audit, we further repart that In our opinfon:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX ol 2017);

b) the stalement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement ol
comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (X1X of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

€l Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees sxtended during the year were far
the purpose of the Company's business: and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 12980 CXVII of 19803,
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 af that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report Is Tarig Feroz
Khan.

£ Lo Llorce,

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 25 September 2019



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Long-term loans and advances — considerad good
Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS y

Stores, spare parts and loose toals
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsecured

Loans and advances — considered good
Trade deposits and shorl-term prepaymenis
Other receivables

Shor-term investiments

Taxation — net

EBank balances

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
25,000,000 (2018: 25,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs 10/~ sach

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Resenes

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilies against assets subject to finance leases
Lang-term deposits

Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of (labilities against assets subject to

finance leages
Provision for warranty
Sales tax payable-net

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Mote

i % Lh

10
11
12
14

15

16
1T

18
18

21

18
22

23

30 Juna
2019

30 Juna
2018

(Rs. in “000) ~—ms-mv

449,581 494,967
3,415 3,855
4,607 5777

457,603 504,559

50,840 54,455
525,105 532,188
144,187 165,572

15,914 24 BOS

2,347 2,049
431 928

102,827 5,518

129,302 141,608

44,994 31,116

1,015,847 58,237

1,473,550 1,462,836
250,000 250,000

133,343 133,343
1,154,676 1,135,647

1,288,019 1,268,890

989 5,306

2,010 1,710

38,250 34 058

41,249 41,974

125,289 133,490
6,848 5.281
3,747 5,257
1,354 5,033
7,048 2 802

144,282 151,872

1,473,550 1,462 836

The annexed notes 1 1o 41 form an integral part of these financial statements. E"‘.u"’

e A bt

Chief Financlal Officer

Director
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

30 June 30 Juna
2018 2018
Note seem—— (RS, In ‘000) ~—evemr
Turnover — hiet 24 1,587,558 1,682,640
Caosl of sales 25 (1,341,776) {1.612,676)
Gross profit 245,782 269,964
Distnbution costs 26 (44,945) (60,116)
Administrative expenses 27 (92,676) (82,075) l
Other expenses 78 {12,541) {8,2684) ‘
Finance costs 29 (6,791) | {1,927
| (156,953) (162,402)
Other income 30 5,126 180
Profit before taxation 93,955 107,742
Taxation - net 31 {22,443) {19,953)
Profit after taxation 71,512 87,789
{Rupees) -~
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted 32 5.36 6.58

The annexed nates 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements. W

né-;d{‘ﬂfzﬂ-\ r%"”"—

Chief Emﬁtive Diregtor

.7 A

Chief Financial Officer
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
(Rs. in ‘000) ~=eemmme
MNet profit for the year 71,512 &7,789
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plan (12,480) (6.547)
Total comprehensive income for the year 59,032 81,242
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Gt
/%m
Chief Exec Director

~ LA

Chief Financial Officer
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

30 June 30 Juna
2019 2018
Mote  —-—(Rs. in “000) ——

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 33 181,315 57.950

Employees’ benafits paid (11,899) {8,921)

Income tax paid- net (6,845) (78,230)

Lang-term loans and advances 440 420

Long-term deposits = net 1,470 122

Net cash generated from / (used In} operating activities 164,481 (28,659)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure {7,980} 1174 618}

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,133 1,85

Frofit recaivad on deposit accounts [/ treasury bills 1,546 5516

Shert-term investments made during the year (163,217) {264, 528)

Short-term investments redeemed during the year 63,461 515,812

Dividend received 260 372

Met cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (98,797) 84,406
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabilities against asset subject to finance leases — net (5,827) 2,857

Finance costs paid (6,541) (1,827

Dividend paid {38,438) (52,891

Net cash used in financing activities (50,806) (82.181)
Mot increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,878 3,586
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 3,116 27,530
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 44,994 31,118
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

tegral p Gt
Chief Exgcutive “Dire

ST 14

Chief Financial Officer
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

REVEMUE RESERVES
Ilsswed,
subscribed Re-maasurement
and paid-up  loss on defined Goneral  Unappropriated Tatal Taotal
Caphtal Baneafit plan EErVe . Prafit rORCIVES Egguity
- R&. in "000

Balance as at 30 June 2017 133343 {5,850) 160,000 253,582 1,107,742 1,241,085
Final divadend for the year

ended 33 Jurie 2017 @ Fs 4 per

shane - - - (53,337) (53.337) (53.337)
HNat prafit for the yeai - - - A7.78% 87,789 87,788
Ciher comprehansive loss - (B,547) = (6.547) (6, 547)
Telal comprahansive income g (6.547) - &7,7ap 81,242 81,242
Balance as at 20 Junae 2018 133,343 (12.287) 180,000 SB8 044 1,138,647 1. 268,580
Final dividend for tha

aendad 30 June 2018 @ Rs. 3 per

i . . “ {40,003} (40,003) {40,003)
Mt profil for the year - . B 71,61 79.812 71,642
Othev comprahensive loss - (12,480} - - {12,480) {12,480}
Total comprehansive income - (12,480) - T1.512 88,032 59,032
Balance as at 30 June 2018 133,343 (24.877) 160,000 1,019,563 1,154,676 1,266,018
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financlal atat-arnentst..w,_

s
Chief Executive Directgr

~p, 7 A

Chief Financlal Officer
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BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Baluchistan Wheels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 16 June 18980, The
Campany is engaged in manufacturing and marketing: of automotive whee! rims for trucks, buses,
tractors, cars and mini cormmercial vehicles. The Company s listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited The registared office and factory of the Companylis siluated al Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki,
Lasbella, Baluchistan, Pakistan.

Geographical lecation and address of business units / plant and its purposes ara as follows:

Location and Address Purpose
Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan, Pakistan Manufacturing facility
1% Floor, State Life Building # 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi Pakistan Head Office

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by
International Aceounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and,
provisions of and directives issued under the Act Where the provisions of and directives issued under
the Act differ from the IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been
followed.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
investmenis which are carried at fair value and present value of defined benefit obligations as reduced
by fair value of planned assels.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previcus financial year except as described below:

New standards, amendments, improvements and interpretations

The Company has adopted the following standards, amendments and improvements of international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which became effective for the current year;

IFRS 2 Share-based Payments: Classification and Measurement of Share Based Paymenis
Transactions (Amendmeants)

IFRS 8 Financial Instrumeants

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customears

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Improvements to IFRSs Issued by IASBE in December 2016

A5 28 — [nvestment in Associates and Joint Ventures; Clarification that mesasuring investass at fair
value through profit or 1oss in an investmant-by-investmant choice.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to IFRSs did not have any effect
on these financial statements, except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as explained below:

ev
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has applied IFRS 15 using modified retrospective modified approach with initial application
date of 1 July 2018 as nofifled by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The first-
time application af IFRS 15 has not had any significant effects with regard to the amount of revenus
recagnised and when it is recognised. Hence, no cumulative adjustment amounts have bean recognised
to adjust the opening retained samings as at 1 July 2018, Accordingly, the information presented for
previous years has nol bean restated, as previously reported, under IAS 18 and related interpretations

The managemenl of the Company has assessed and congluded that the Company [s in compliance with
the requirements of IFRS 15. The new accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is stated in note
4.14 (o these financial statamants.

IFRE 9 Financial Instruments

The Company has applied IFRS 8 using modified retrospective modified approach with inittal application
date of 1 July 20118 as notified by the SECP, IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recagnising and measuring
financial assets, financial lizbilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial tems. The adoption of
IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company's accounting for impalrmant losses for financial assets
by replacing 1AS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach,

The management of the Company has assessed and concluded that the Company s in compliance with
tha requirements of IFRS 5. The new accounting policy in respect of financial instruments and impairment
of financial assets is stated n note 4.7 to these financial stalements respectively.

Standards, Interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not
yvet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the accounting and reporting
slandards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respactive standard or interpratation:

Effective date

{annual periods
Standard or interpretation beginning
on or after)
IFRS -3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) 01 January 2020
IFRS -3 Business Combinations: Previously held intefests in & joint operation 01 January 2019
IFRS -9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) 01 January 2015
IFRS=10 Consolidated Financial Statements and Invesiment in Associates and
f1AS 28 doint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Mot Yet Finalired
IFRS — 11  Joint Arrangements: Previously held interests in a joint operation 01 January 2019
IFRS =16 Leases 01 January 2019
1AS-1/1AS 8 Definition of Materdal (Amendments) 01 January 2020
1AS =12 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of payments on financial
Instruments classified as equity 01 January 2018
IAS = 18 Flan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amandmants) 01 January 2019
1AS — 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing cosls eligible for capltalization 01 January 2019
145 — 28 Long-term [ntarests in Associates and Joint Venlures (Amendments) 01 January 2019
IFRIC - 22 Uncertainty over [ncome Tax Treatmenis 01 Januwary 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements In the period of initlal application.

Inaddition to the above standards, amendments and improvements to various IFRS have also been lssued
by the IASE in December 2017. Such improvements sre generally effective for accounting perinds
beginning on or after 01 January 2019 respectively. The Campany expects that such improvemeants to the
standards will nat have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial
application.
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The |ASE has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting {the Conceptual
Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods baginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework.
The revised Conceptual Framewark 15 not 8 standard, and nona of the concepts ovemride those in any
atandard or any requirements in a standard. The purposea of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASE
in developing standards, lo help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable
standard in place and to assist all parties to undarstand and interpret the standards

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan. The management of the Company expects thal below new
standards will not have any matarial impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial

application.
IASE
Effective date
{annual periods
beginning
Standard on or after)
IFRS 1 = First time adoplion of IFRSs 01 January 2004
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2018
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021

3.1 Significant accounting Judgemants, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affact the application of policias and
the reparted amounts of assets, fiabilities, income and expenses,
Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including reasonable expectations of fufure events. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

Judgments and estimates made by management thal may have a significant risk of material adjustments
fo the financial statements in subsequent years are as follows:

= residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 4.1 and 5.1}

= pravision for slow moving and obsolele stores, spares and loose tools and stock-in-trade (notes 4.3 and
4.4)

= provision for expected credit loss on trade dabts {note 4.7.3)
- taxation (nokte 4.8)
- Provision for compensated leaves (note 4.11)
- provision for warranty {note 4.13)
- confingencies (note 23)
4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesa financial statements sre set out
balow. Thess policies have bean consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated,

4.1 Froperty, plant and squipment
{i) Ownad
Operating fixed assots
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lossas, If any,

exceplt for the freehold land which |s stated at cost.
AN
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Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method, except for
computers which are depreciated on straight line method, at the rates stated in note 5.1. In respect of
additions and disposals of assets, depreciation is charged from the day from which an asset is available
for use and continues depreciating it until it s decrecognised. An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upaon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expacted from its use or disposal.
Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmeant {being difference of carmrying value and sale
procesds) is included in statement of profit or loss.

Maintenance and narmal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, Major
renewals and improvemeants are capitalized, if recognition criteria is meat and the asset so replaced, if
any, are retired,

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depregiation meathods are reviewed and adjusted
prospactively, if appropriate, at each reparting date.

Capital work-in-progross

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment, it any, and represent axpanditures conneched
with spacific assets incurred durng the construction / erection period, including advances to suppliers
and contraciors. Thasa ara transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

{il) Leased

Assats held under finance leasas are initially recorded at the lower of the present value of minimum lease
payments under the lsasa agreemeants and tha fair value of the leased assats. Tha related obligations
under the lease lass financial charges allocated (o fulure periods are recorded as lability,

The financial charges are aliccated to accounting periods in a manner 5o as to provide a constant periodic
rate of interast on the outstanding Habiiity.

Depreciation is charged fo statement of profit or loss on the same basis as for the Company’s owned
assels.

4.2 Loans and advances
These are stated at cost, which is the fair value of the considaration given, less provision for impairment.
4.3 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at lower of weighted average cost and Net Realisable Value (MRV) except items in
transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon ta the reparting date,

Provision is made annually in tha financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items, if required.

4.4 Stock-in-trade

Raw matarial and components are valued at lower of weighted average cost and Net Realisable Value

(NRV).

Work in process s valued at lower of average manufaciuring cost and NRW.

Finished goods are valusd at [ower of average manufacturing cost and NRV,

Stack in transit is valued at cost comprising Involce value plus other charges incurred thereon,
Scrap slocks are valued at NRY

MRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary icourse of business less the astimated cost of
completion and the costs necessary to be Incurred to make the sale,

4.5  Trade debts

Trade debls are recognised and carried at corigingl invoice amount which is the fair value of the
considaration given, [ess provision for expected credit loss (ECL). Provision far ECL has been discussed
in note 4.7.3. Bad debis are written-off and charged to statement of profit or loss.

U\L’«



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED E&

Manufacturers of Automotive Wheels in Pakistan

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

4.6, Financlal Instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives nse 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liabifity or equity instrument of another entity.

4.7. Financial assets

4.7.1 Initial recognition and measurement

The financial assets of the Company mainly includa rade debts, deposits, other receivable and bank
balances.

Under IFRS §, on initial recogrition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amorised cost; Fair
Valua through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT) = debt investment; FVOCI — equity investmant;
or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The dclassification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is
generally basad on the business model in which 2 ﬁnanc::ia! assel is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Based on the businass madel of the Company, the financial assets of the Company
are measured and classified under IFRS 9

Trade debts and other financial assets previously classified as 'loans and receivables' are now classified
as ‘amortised cost. These assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less an aliowance for expected credit lossas, if any.

4.7.2 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - These assets are subsequently measured at falr
value. Net gains and losses, including any Interest er dividend income, are recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets st amortised cost - These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost Using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and lossas and impairment are recognisad in statemant of
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition s recognised in statement of profit or loss.

4.7.3  Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 8 replaces the ‘incurred loss' model in 1AS 29 with an ‘expected credit loss' (ECL) model. The
new impairment model applies to inancal assets measured at amortised cost, contract assets and debt
investments at FWVOCI, but not ta investments in equity instruments.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash fiows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to recaive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the ssset's original effectiva interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancemenits that are integral to the
contractual terms. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial azsat 1o ba
in default when intarnal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the
g.:}tﬁtanding contractual amounts in full before taking into’account any credit enhancements held by the
mpany.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasongble expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be In default
when Intemal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amaunts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.

At each reporfing date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial
assel is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on lhe estimated
future cash fiows of the financial asset have occurred. Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the respeclive asset.

The Company uses the standard's simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life time ECL on
its financial assets. The Company has established a provision malrix that is based on the Company’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors specific to the financial assets and
the economic environment.

e
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4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statementiof financial position al cost and are defined as
bank balances. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalenls comprise current
and deposit accounts.

4.10 Trade and other payables

These are carmied at cost which is the fair vaiue of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods
and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.11 Staff benefits
Dafined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved funded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent amployees who
have completed the minimum qualifying period of service for entitierment of gratuity. The contributions
lo the scheme are made in accordance with the indepandant actuarial valuation. The latest acluarial
valuation was camied oul as of 30 June 2019 using Projected Unit Credit method, Re-measuremeant
Iosses and gains are recognised directly to other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
statemant of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Defined contribution plan

Tha Company operates an spproved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all parmanent
employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal contributions are made
by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary for executives
and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-executives.

Compensated absences

Accrual for compensated @bsences is made o the extent of the value of accrued absences of the
employees at the reporting dale using their current salary levels as per Company's policy. No actuarial
valuation of compensated absences is camied out as the management considers that the financial
impact iz not materisl,

442 Provisions

Frovisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, itis probabie that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required
1o settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions
are reviewed at @ach raporting dete and adjusted to reflect the curren! best estimates.

4.13 Warranty Obligations

The management estimates at each reporting date a liability that could arise as a result of the
Company's obligation to repair and replace products under warranly. The warranty provided by the
Company to the customer is assurance warranty.

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims:on productls sold at the rate of 0.2 percent of
last six months' turnover based on past experience. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for
warranties are based on current sales levels and current information available about past trend and
fulure expectation of such claims. Any change in the estimates in fulure might affect the profit or loss
account of that year,

4.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and Is recognised on the
following basis:

-  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when or 8s control of goods have been transferred o a
customner either over time or at a point in time, when the performance obligations are met,

- Profit on bank accounts is recognised on effective interest rate mathod.

- Dividend income is recognised whan the right to receive such payment is established

- Oher revenues are accounted when performance obligations are met.

4.15 Foreign currency transactions

Transaclions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange
approximaling those appesring on the dates of Wransactions. Monelary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are fransiated into Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating
those pravalling at the reporting date. Any resulling gain or loss arising from changes in exchange rates
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Thess are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.

These financial slatements are prepared in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and

417 Functional and presentation currency
prasentation currency,
5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets
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51 Operating fixed assets
CO5T
Al An at
o1 Juty  Additons f 30 Juna
a6 “Tranafer (Dinposais) 01
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5.2 Allocation of depreciation charge is as follows:

Cost of sales 25 45,257 39.817
Distribution costs 28 241 255
Administrative expenses 27 4,828 5,589

50,323 45 571

5.3 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Description Location Total Area
Freanold land and building on  Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbells,
freahold iand Baluchistan, Pakistan 23.96 acres
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Mote ———- (RS, IN ‘000) —=—sssemee
54 Capital work-in-progress — Plant and machinery

Balance at the beginning of the year 59,081 130
Additions during the year 404 59,083
Transferred to operating fixed assats (59,485) {142)
Balance at the end of the year - 59 081

L LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - consldered good

Loans - securad

Employees 6.1 2,220 2735
Execulives 61882 1,881 1,389
4,101 4,134
Current portion 1 {1,283} {1,337}
2,808 2,797
Advances - securad
Employees 5,384 13,?'
Executives 6.2 1,091 1,441
6,475 14,453
Currant portion 5 {5,B88) {13,405)
607 1,058
3,415 3,855

6.1 Represent interest-free loans given to executives and employees as par employment terms. These
are recoverable in equal monthly instzliments over a period of four years. These loans are secured
against the retirement banafits of employees.

6.2 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any menth during the year was
Rs. 2,972 million (2018: Rs. 2 840 million).

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Note (Rs. in *000) =—===seeee
T LOMNG-TERM DEPOSITS
Trade deposits 3,998 4,053
Lease deposits 609 1,714
71 4,607 5777

71  Represents unsecured, considered good and non-interest bearing with various parties.

el
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STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
Spare parts
Loase tools

Prowvision for slow moving:
Stores

Spara parns
Loose tocls

Movemnent in provision for slow moving is as follows:

Opeaning balancs
Provision made during the year
Clcsing balance

STOGCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material and compenents
Work-in-process

Finished goods

Secrap stock

Stock-in-transit

Prowvision for slow moving stock

Movement in provision for slow moving is as follows:

Opaning balance
Provision mada during the year

Revarsal during the year
Closing balance

TRADE DEBTS - unsecursd

Considared good

Considered doubtiul
Provision for expected credit loss

Movemant In provision for expected credit loss
is as follows:

Opening balance
Provision during the year

Wiritten-off during the year
Reversal during the year
Closing balance

Manufacturers of Automotive Wheels in Pakistan

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

30 June 30 June
2018 2018
Note {Rs. in “000)

4,104 4,498

898,332 98,808

1,965 2188

105,401 105,595

(273) {267}

(53,634) (50,224)

(654 {643)

8.1 (54,561) {51,140)
50,840 54 455
§1.140 47,210
25 3,421 3,830
54,561 51,140

233,078 211,283

189,843 143,066

140,288 ar.671

449 83,627

543,668 515,547

- 36,381

543,688 651,938

8.1 {1B,563) {18,750}
525,105 532,188

19,750 25,072

25 - 424
18,750 25495

25 {1,187) {5,748}
18,563 19,750

144,187 165,672

112 &1

101 (112} (81}
144 187 1685 572
B1 353

27 112 81
193 434
- 131)

30 (81) (322}
112 81

st AL B
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30 June 30 June
2019 2018
MNote (R=. in "000)
11 LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good
Loans — secured
Current portion of long-term loans (-] 1,283 1,337
Advances
Current portion of long-term advances — secured & 5868 13,405
For expanses — unsecured a7 400
Ta suppliers — unsecured 8,358 0 663
14,621 23,458
15,914 24,805
12 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade deposits 2.1 505 1.557
Prepayments B4z 492
Lease deposits 1,000 -
2,347 2 0459
121 Represents deposits paid to various parties. These are unsecured, considered good and non-interest
bearing.
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
MNote (Rs. in ‘000) -——==-m-m—
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Woarker's profit participation fund - 735
Accrued profit on treasury bills 308 -
Dividend receivable 122 163
431 928
14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Fair Value through profit or loss
Listad shares 14.1 2,826 5516
At amortized cost
Treasury bills 14.2 100,001 -
102,827 5 616
14,1 Listed shares
Fully paid-up ordinary shares of listed companies are as follows:
30 June 30 June Face
2019 2018 value of
Number of shares Rs. Company's Name
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan)
10,000 10,000 10 Limited 1,483 3,184
Fauji Cement Company
25,000 25,000 10 Limited 393 571
5,000 5,000 10 Mishat Mills Limited 457 705
6,250 5,000 10 Attock Refinery Limited 483 1,076
2,826 5,516

14.2 These carry interest rate ranging from 12.7% to 12.74%; (2018: 5.93% to 5.99%) per annum,

14.3 Netunrealised diminution on re-measuramant of investments recognised as financial assets 'at fair value
through profit or [oss:

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Note {Rs. in "000) —---a-m
Market value of securities 2,826 6,518

Carmrying value of securities {4,944) {10,385)
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30 June 30 June
2018 2018
Note == (RS, in '000) ==
BANK BALANCES
Current accounts 15,804 10,643
Deposit accounts 15.1 28,150 20473
44,594 31,116

This carries profit rate ranging from 10.5% to 11% (2018: 5.35% to 5.8%) per annum.
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AMD PAID-UP CAPITAL

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Number of shares) wememmmees (RE, N '000)
Ordinary shares of Rs, 10/- each
issued as:
9,276,000 8,275,000 fully paid in cash 92,760 82 760
4,058,250 4 056,250 fully paid bonus shares 40,583 40,583
13,334,250 13,334,250 133,343 133,343

The shareholders are entitlad to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitternents in
the form of cash, bonus and right shares, as the case may be, as and when declared by the Company
All shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
mmmmmnmeee [RE. 0 000) —=——
RESERVES
Revenue
Ganearal 160,000 160,000
Unappropriated profit 1,019,553 988,044
1,179,553 1,148,044
Other componant of eguity
Re-measurement loss an defined bensfit plan (24,877} (12,3977
1,154,676 1,135,647

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASES

Represent finance leaseas antered into with commercial banks for vehicles. Total lease rentals due under
lease agreamaents aggregate to Rs. 4.983 million (2018: Rs. 11.280 million) and are payable in monthly
instaliments latest by 2020, Taxes, repairs, replacement and insurance costs are to be borne by the
Company. In case of termination of agresment, the Company has to pay the entire rent for the unexpired
period. Financing rate ranging from six months' KIBOR plus 100 bps to 150 bps per annum {2018; 150
bps per annum} has besnused as discounting factor. Purchase options can ba exarcised by the Company
at the end of lease term, by paying 10 percent of the leased amount. These liabilities are partly secured
by security deposit amounting to Rs.1.60%9 million (2018; Rs.1.714 million) as disciosed in note 7 and 12
to the financial statements, The summary of the finance lease liability is as follows:

2019 2018
Minlmum Minimum
Leaso Present Lease Prasent

payment Value Payment Value

mahenaeeee o (R8N 000) ———— —
Within cne year 3,978 3,747 5770 5,267
After one year but not more than five year 1,005 9839 5,510 5,308
Total minlmum lease payments 4,983 4,736 11,280 10,563
Amount representing finence charges (247) - {717} =
Présent value of minimum lease Paymenis 4,738 4, 736 10,563 10,563
Current portion (3,747} {3, 747) {5,267 {5,257}

8988 989 5. 306 9,306

=
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30 June 30 June
20139 2018
Mote e (R, 0 000}
19 LOMNG-TERM DEPOSITS
Deposit from employees - 181 2,010 1,710

181 Represent inferest-free deposits received from employeas on account of executive cars and generatar
scheme. The amount is adjustable within the period of five and three years raspactively against respective

assels,
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Note (Rs. in ‘000)
20 DEFERRED TAXATION
Taxable temporary differences arising due to:
Accelerated tax depraciation 80,492 58,334
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 1,372 540
61,864 58,574
Deductibla temporary differences arising due to:
Provisions 123,614) {24,018)
38,250 34 858
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 32,024 48,2365
Accrued labllities 48,727 42,735
Advance from customers — unsecured 1,744 4648
Gratuity fund 211 17,510 10,629
Provident fund 21,2 4 3
Retention monay 455 455
Compensated absences 6,836 3,805
Workers® profit participation fund 21.3 1,035 -
Workers welfare fund 15,851 17,667
Security deposit 448 448
Mark-up on short-term finance 250 -
Others 305 873
125,289 133,489
214 Gratuity fund 17,510 7,817
21.1.1  Amount recognised in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 21.1.4 90,263 78,400
Fair value of plan asset 21.1.5 {72,753) {68,771}
Net ligbility recognisad in the ststement of financial position 17,510 10,829
21.1.2 Charge for the year
Current service cost 4,552 3,264
Net interest cost 478 818
5,030 4,082
21.1.3 Movement in net liability
Opening balance 10,629 T.B817
Met charge for the year 5,030 4,082
Re-measurement loss 12 480 6,547
Paid to fund during the year (10,823} (7.617)
Closing balance 17,510 10,629
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30 June 30 Jung
2019 2018
Note (R=. in "000) =
2114 Movement in présent value of defined benefit obligations
Cpening balance 78,400 74,931
Currant service cost 4,552 3,264
Interest cost 7,040 6,193
Benefits paid during the year (2,358) (324)
Re-measuremeant loss J (gain) 1,627 {4, 664)
Closing balance 90,263 78,400
21.1.5 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
COpening balancea 68,771 67,314
Expected raturn 6,561 5.375
Canfributions 10,629 7.817
Benefits paid during the year (2,356) (324)
Re-measurement loss {10,852} {(11.241)
Closing balance 72,753 68,771
21.1.8 Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
20139 2018
{Parcentage) --—----—
Expacted rale of increase in salary lavel 15.25 10
Rata of relurn on plan assets 14.25 9
aluation discount rate 14.25 9
21.4.7 Composition of plan assets are as follows:
2019 2018
(Rs. In "000) ———
Treasury Bills 34,826 40,228
Mutual Funds 20,468 16,315
Equity Investments 7,803 12,158
Amount in banks 9,655 72
72,753 68,771
Expected contribution to the fund for the year ending 30 June 2020 s Rs. 7.03 million.
21.2 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified there under:
Contributions are made by both the Company and the members @ 10% of the basic salary for
exacutive and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-execulive.
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
MNote = {R=. in “000)
213 Waorkers® profit participation fund
Balance at the beginning of tha year {735} (742)
Allocation for the year 28 5,035 5,766
4,300 5,024
Payment made during the year - net {3,265) {5,759)
Balance at the end of the year 1,035 (735)
22 PROVISION FOR WARRANTY
Opening balance 5,033 4,087
[Reversal) / Provision made during the year 26 (3,011} 1,127
Adjustment during the year against claims 668 161
Closing balance 1,354 &,033




BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED g

Manufacturers of Automotive Wheels in Pakistan

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

23 CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS
231 Contingencies

2314 On B April 2004, Mational Bank of Pakistan (NBF) has made a payment to the Privatisation Commission
amaounting to Rs.81.25 million and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindh for the recovery of
the same from the Company which was subsequently transferred due to administrative reasons to the
Banking Court Mo. Il at Karachi-and now pending adjudication. The management, based on the advice
of s legal advisor, is of the view that the matter is at the final stage of arguments and the Company
has a good defence in the matter. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial
statements in respact of the above matter,

231.2 On & August 2001, the Company has filed a suit before the High Court of Sindh &t Karachi, against
NEP for satistaction of Charge on Asset which was created in anticipation of a prospective loan / finance
to be provided by NBP to the Company. As the proposed loan / finance has not been obtained from
NBP by the Company, the charge should have been redeemed by NBP. Currently, the matter is at the
state of evidence of the parlies. The management, based on the advice of legal advisor, is of the view
that ne financial implications will arise to the Company as a result of this sult and accordingly, no
provision has been made in this respect in these financial statements.

231.3 Some former non-executive employees have filed cases against the Company on various matters
baefore the court of law which are pending subjudice. In the opinion of legal advisor, there is no financial
exposure 1o the Company and hence, no provision hes been made in this respect In these financlal
statements.

In addition, the Company has also filed petition against some ex-workers in Baluchistan High
Court, Quetta on their ilegal sirike and unfair practice at'faciory premises.

2314 On Japnuary 25 2018, the Additional Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIR) has amended the
assessment and issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, (ITQ) 2001,
fior tax year 2015, and created arbitrary tax demand of Rs. 35356 million. Being aggrieved with the
arder of the concermned ACIR, the Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals — | CIR (A) on which the concerned CIR (A) thraugh ks ordar under seclion 129 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, has deleted certaln additions and has remanded back the case to
the concarned ACIR on account of certain additions. The ACIR has filed an appeal on the issues which
were deleted by the CIR(A} before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) and are pending
adjudication.

The management does not consider necessary 1o malr!.lain provision of Rs. 17.6 million against the
demand of the tax year 2015, which was made in the ptior year, as the matter will be reassassed as
fresh by the relevant assessing authority, Accordingly, provision for the Tax Year 2015 of Rs. 17.8
million has been reversed in these financial statements.

2315 On 27 Seplember 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has amended the assessment
and issued order under section 122 (5A) of the ITO for the tax year 2017, reducing tax refunds for the
said tax year by Rs. 28.39 milien. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before ACIR,
who maintained the demand of DCIR through appellate order dated 15 January 2019, The Company
filed appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication,

The management based, on the advice of tax advisor, is of the u;!ew that outcome of the appeal cannaot
be ascerlained al this stage consequently any future potential liability. However, the management, on
prudent basis, has made provision of Rs. 14.2 million in respect of above contingency in these financial

statemants.
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
{Rs. in '000) ————
23.2 Commitments
Qutstanding letter of guarantees 5212 4,512
Outstanding letters of credit 78,137 167,538

e
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Local sales

Sales ratum
Sales tax

Export sales
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Local sales include scrap sales of Rs. 62.631 (2018: Rs. 38.096) million,

COST OF SALES
Raw material and packaging consumaod

Opening stock
Raw malerial
Scrap

Furchases

Closing stock
Raw material
Scrap

Manufacturing overheads
Salaries, wages and banefits
Slores, spare pans and loose tools consumed
Depreciation
Fuel and power
Outsourced job contractor
Staff transporntation
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Provision for siow moving stores, spare parts and loose lools
Vehicle running expenses
Entertainment
Communication
Printing and stationary
Travelling and conveyance
Computer expenses
Subscription
Slow moving stock-in-trade
provision made during the year
reversal during the yaar
Others

Manufacturing cost

Work-in-process
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Cp&ning

Closing

Cost of sales

30 June 30 June
2013 2018
Mota {Rs. in "000) -
24.1 1,865,475 2,199,205
{5,158) {4, 288)
(263,589) {319.543)
(274, 758) {323,831)
6,841 7266
1,587,558 1,882 640
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Note == (Rs. in ‘000)
2] 211,283 168,873
=] 63,527 56,847
274,810 225 520
986,622 1,479,107
9 {233,078) {211,282)
9 {449) {63,527}
{233,627) 274,810)
1,027,905 1.128.817
251 164,598 153,273
63,3156 86,188
5.2 45,257 30 817
44,070 50,391
32,7R3 44 3094
15,708 13673
4,680 7.239
3778 4.281
81 3,421 2,930
2,945 2 658
2,051 1,798
651 779
547 504
193 3.886
104 118
48 ag
2.1 = 424
9.1 {1,187} {5,746)
312 1,646
383,275 408 280
1,411,180 1.5358,107
=] 143,066 222,337
a | (169,843) | {143 066)
26,777 78,271
1,384,403 1,618,378
g a7.671 81,969
a (140,298) (87671}
42 62T 5 702
1,341,776 1.612.876
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30 June 30 June
2018 2018
Note {Rs. In *000) ———-—
25.1 Included herein are the following employeas' benefits:
Bonus 12,324 10,8588
Medical 5,003 4,584
Cefined benafit plan — gratuity 3,773 3,082
Defined contribution plan — provident fund 3,496 3,157
Accrual for compansated absances 1,192 1,586
25,788 23,286
26 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Carriage and forwarding 26,700 39,208
Salaries and benefits 26.1 13,774 12,700
Cutsourced service expenses 2,432 2,290
Entartainment 4,708 1,491
Wehicle running expenses 1,359 S86
Utilities 524 504
Insurance 510 554
Salling expenss — exports 313 267
Depreciation 5.2 241 255
Communication 118 a7
Staff transportation 81 117
Advertisernent 40 147
Traveliing and conveyance E 234
Compuler expenses 12 41
(Revarsal) / provision of warranty 22 {3,011) 1,127
Others 134 118
44,945 60,116
26.1 Includad herein are the following employees' benefits:
Banus 822 Tar
Defined contribution plan — provident fund 726 653
Medical 28 5817
Defined benefit plan — gratuity 251 204
Accrual for campensated absences 19 48
2,098 2,150
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and banefits 271 48,382 45,258
Qutsourced sarvice axpensas 8,537 8,328
Vehicle running expenses 6,690 7,118
Corporate expenses 5,151 5,216
Depreciation 52 4,825 5,550
Entertainment 3,570 5,128
Rent, rates and taxes 2,955 2,709
Utilities 2,787 3,003
Legal and professional charges 2,080 2122
Auditor's remuneration 27.2 1,286 1,188
Doubtful advances written-off 1,153 =
Insurance 1,053 1,287
Communication 759 g72
Staff transportation 681 704
Repairs and maintenance 419 878
General stores supplies 594 738
Computer expenses 398 a00
Travelling and conveyance 338 155
Subscription 228 141
Printing and stationery 202 354
Advertisement 135 28
Provision for expected credit loss 10.1 112 81
Others 341 457
a2 RTA a9 N7k
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30 June 30 June
2018 2018
MNote {Rs. in ‘000) ——-meume
271 Included herein are the following employees’ benafits:
Bonus 3,286 2,906
Deafined contribution plan — provident fund 1,894 1,661
Medical 1,650 1,318
Defined benefit plan = gratuity 1,008 B16
Accrual for compensated absences g0 180
7,926 6,801
27.2 Auditor's remuneration
Statutory audit fes 715 T16
Fees for limiled scope review 150 150
Code of Corporate Govarnancea BS 55
Other certifications 135 70
Cut of pocket expenses 221 198
1,286 1,188
28 OTHER EXPENSES
Warkers' profits paricipation fund 5,035 5,766
Workers' welfare fund 1,704 1,810
Exchange loss — net 5,802 708
12,541 8,284
29 FINAMCE COSTS
Mark-up / interest on:
Markup on running finance 5,912 842
Finance lease obligations 608 e
8,520 1,558
Bank charges and excise duty 271 369
6,791 1,827
30 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assots
Profit on deposit accounts 1,417 1,977
Prafit on freasury bills 438 1,580
Dividend income 189 arz
Realised loss on redemption of invesimenis {327) 32
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments 14.3 (2,118) {4,868}
{401) (940)
Income from non-financial assets
Liability no longer payable 4,298 |
Gain on sale of property, plant and equiprment 3,080 601
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss 10.1 81 a22
Cisposal of waste [ others (2,254) 168
Others 3z 20
5,527 1,120
5,126 180




31 TAXATION
Currant
Pricr
Deferred

31.1 Relationship between accounting profit before tax and Taxation

Accounting profit for the year before taxation

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)
Tax affects:

- expenses that are not allowable in datermining taxable

income
= prior year
= income subject to reduced rates
- change in tax rates
- credit for investment in plant and machinery

Effective tax rate %
32 EARNINGS PER SHARE BASIC AND DILUTED

Thare is no dilutive effect on the basle earings per share
of the Company, which g2 based on:

Profit for the year after taxation (Ra. in "000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year of Rs. 10/- each (in '000)

Basic samings per share (Rupees)
331 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit hefore taxation

Adjustments for:

Deprecialion
Gain an sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Provislon for slow moving stores,

spara parts and loose tools
Reversal for slow moving stock-in-trade — net
Pravizion / (reversal) for expected credit loss — net
Proviston for compensated absances
{Reversal) / provision for warranty claims
Provislon for employees' benafits
Profit on deposit accounts / treasury bills
Loss on revaluation and redemption of

listed shares
Dividend income

Warking capital changes

MNote

311

Wi gy tn
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30 June 30 June
2019 2018
~—=—— (Rs. in “000} -
20,808 16,109
{1,657) (1.934)
3,282 5778
22,443 18,853
83,9556 107,742
27, 24T 32,323
882 1,312
{1,657) (1,934)
{523) 84
= (1,205)
(3,508} {10,627)
22 443 19,953
23.89 18.52
71,512 87,7839
Number of sharos
13,334 13,334
5.36 5.58
93,955 107,742
50,323 45671
{2,090) (601)
6,781 1.82T7
3421 3,830
{1,187) (5,322)
55 | {241}
1,301 1,824
(3,679) 1,127
5,030 4,082
{1.,855) (3,5587)
2,445 4. 863
{189) {(372)
58,342 53,337
153,297 161.079
28,018 (103,128)
181,315 67 950

AN
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30 June 30 June
2019 2018
(Rs. in ‘000) —=-—meme-
33.1 Working capital changes
Decrease | (increase) in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 194 (2,455)
Stock-in-trade 8,270 {7,952}
Trade debls — unsecured 21,354 (69,519)
Leans and advances — considerad good 8,891 v, 787
Trade deposits, short term prepayments and other receivables 437 (541)
Sales tax refundable 4,244 11,356
43,390 {61,364)
Decrease In current llabilities
Trade and other payables {15,372 {41,765)
28,018 {103,128}

34 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
341 Aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements are as follows:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EXECUTIVES TOTAL
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2014 2018
{Rs. in '000)

Remunearation 6,579 5,904 12,776 11,426 6,494 3.837 26,848 20,867
Houging 2,961 2.857 5,748 5142 2,922 1,636 11,631 9,435
Retirement benafits 2,528 1,793 4,698 3,580 2,423 1,382 9,450 6,765
Bonus 1,968 2,273 3.808 4 3B6 1,841 1,337 7817 7,996
Medical expensaes 729 416 1,383 1,218 204 120 2,316 1,754
Utilities 512 397 1,031 1.028 B34 386 27T 1.822
Leave fare Assistance - 1,000 B7E - B1 54 TE6 1,054

15,077 14 440 20,120 26791 14589 8 562 59,796 49723
MNumber 1 b 2 “E 4 2 7 5

34.2 In addition, the Chief Executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with free use of the
Company's maintained cars, household items and other benefits in accordance with their terms of

employment

34.3 Aggregate amount charged [n the financial statements for fee for attending meetings to six non-executive
directors was Rs. 2.95 million {2018 Rs. 2.70 million).

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equily and management of working caplital with a view ta
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a whole,
the Company is exposed to markel risk (including equity price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk),
eredit nsk and liquidity risk. The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables
and liabilitias against assets subject to finance lease. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is lo
raise finance for the Company's operations. The Company has various financial assets such as shori-
term investments, loans, trade debls and cash and bank balances, which are directly related to its

operations.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s rigk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's
risk management policies. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance. No changes were mede in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during
the year ended 30 June 2018 which are summarnzed below:

o
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35.1 Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk that fair value of future cash fiowrs will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market fisk comprises three types of risk: s:t.l.rre«'llm,..r risk, interest rate risk and other price risk such
as equity risk.

(i} Equity price risk

Equity risk is the risk of loss arsing from movements in prices of equily investments. As of the
reporting date, the Company is not materiafly exposed to such risk.

{if} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate
due to a change in a foreign exchange rates. It arisaa mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to transactions In foreign currency. The Company is not materially exposed ta fareign currancy
risk.

{fil} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of futurecash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interast rates relates primarily to the Company’s liabilities against assets subject to finance lease. The
Company mitigates its risk by maintaining excess funds in saving accounts with floating interest rates.
Sensitivity analysis

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to 2 reasonably possible change in inferast rate, with all
other variabies held constant, of the Company's profit before tax:

Increase /
decrease in Effect on
interest rate profit
(%) {Rs. In ‘000)
30 June 2019 +2 488
-2 {489)
30 June 2018 +2 198
e {198}

35.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be récognised at the reporting date if counter parties
failed to perform as contracted. The Company manages credil risk through having exposure only to
customers and parties considerad credit worthy and obitalning securities where applicable, As of the
reporting date, the Company is axposad to credit risk on' the following assets:

Carrying values

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
Mote --—-—- (Rs.In ‘000)
Loans B8 4,101 4,134
Deposits and other receivablaes 6,112 T.334
Trade debts - unsecured 10 144,187 185,572
Shart term investment 14 102,827 5,516
Bank balances 15 44,994 31,116
302,221 213,872

@'\\-"’
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Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
1o external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as shown balow:

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
wemmnneeee (RS, in ‘000) ~——-
The ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts at 30 June s
as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired 85,826 142 G598
Past due but not impaired:
Within 90 days 54,223 22,548
Within 90 to 180 days 4,138 328
Over 180 days . 2
144 187 185,572
Bank balances
Ratings
Al 44,994 31,116
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meat its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company applies prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient bank balances and by
keeping committed credit lines. Al the reporting date, the Company has unavailed facility of Rs. 335 million
for a running finance facility which carries interast rate ranging batweaen 0. 75% and 1% percent plus 3
months average KIBOR and Is secured against the stock and book debts of the Company for Rs, 4636
million. The table balow summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the
following reporting dates:

on Less than 3 Jto12 1to 5
demand Months months Years Total
{Rs. in "000)
30 June 2019
Long-term deposits - - = 2,010 2,010
Liabilities against asset
subject to finance leases - 625 3122 -1 1) 4,736
Trade and other payables 82,208 - - = 82,209
82,209 625 3,122 2 959 88,955
On Less than 3 Jto 12 1t s
demand Months months Years Total
{Rs. In "000)
30 June 2018
Long-term deposits - - - 1,710 1,710
Liabilities against asset
subject o finance leages - gvs 4,381 5,306 10,563
Trade and other payables 83,747 —— - 83,747
83,747 876 4,381 7,016 108,020

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong
cradit rating and optimal capital struciures in order to ensure ample avallabllity of finance for its existing
and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages iis capital structure and makes adjustmant to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares,

The Company financas its investment portfolio through aquity and management of its working capital with
a view 1o maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. However
as of reparting date the Campany 5 mainly financed thraugh aquity.
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36 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprisa directors, key management personnal and retiremeant banefit
plans, Transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements
are as follows:

30 June 30 June
Relationship Nature of transactions 2018 2018
e [R& in '000)
Key management personnel  Sale of vehicles [ equipment - 476
Key management personnel Dividend paid to directérs and others 22,680 27,877
Key management personnal Loan given during the year 1,881 1,288
Key management personnel  Advances paid during the year 1,081 1,441

37 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the financial assels and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair
value is the amount for which an assel could be iexchanged, or a liability setied between
knowledgeable, willing parties in 2n arm’s length transadtion.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value as of the reporting date,
analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

Leval 1: Quoted prices In aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2! Those invalving inputs other than quoted prices|included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or llabllity, either directly {as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those with inputs for the saset or lisbility that are nol bazed on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs. in 000
Investments designated ‘at fair
value thraugh profit or loss®
Listed Shares
2019 2,826 - - 2,826
2018 5518 - - 5,516
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
MNote - {Units in *000) —————-

38 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Plant capacity — single shift (eastimated) 38.1 850 B50
Astual production 662 812

38.1 During the year actual production was below the estimated capacity due to lower demand of wheels of
all the segments (l.e. car / truck and bus / tractor whealsﬁ_

38 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employeas including contractual employses of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018

Mumbers —--——--
At year end 272 290
Average employesas during the year 280 283

o
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40 DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on M,_EU1Q proposed final cash dividend of
Rs.= 2 = /- per share for the year ended June 30, 2018 amounting to Rsef£+££ ] million for approval
af the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on MEMQ.

41 GEMERAL
41.1 Figures have bean rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

41.2 Certain prior year figures have been reclassified for betier presentation. However, there are no material
reclassifications to report.

41.3 These financial statements have been authorised for issue onw 2019 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Lo N R =

. b

Chief Financial Officer
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
SHAREHOLOING RANGE
MO. OF SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHRRES
FROM TO
647 1 - 100 27 54
472 11 - 500 130,398
113 a0 1 - 1000 86,238
an 1,001 - 5000 181,736
16 A001 - 10000 126,713
3 10001 - 15000 32,262
1 15001 - 20000 18,500
1 20001 - 35000 33,715
1 25001 - 40000 37,000
1 50001 - A5000 55,000
1 20001 - 25000 82,800
2 25001 - 0000 175,500
1 110001 - 115000 110,400
1 145001 - 150000 145 562
1 220001 - 235000 234,500
1 245001 - 250000 248 800
1 285001 - 280000 287 500
1 225004 - 320000 328,000
1 240001 - 345000 341 693
1 380001 - 385000 381,165
1 435001 - 440000 437,201
1 480001 - 425000 482,083
1 G20001 - 625000 24,248
1 G500 - G50000 G 478
1 1245001 - 1250000 1,248,050
1 1280001 - 1285000 1,282,825
1 1325001 - 1330000 1,328,360
1 157000 - 1675000 1,571,871
1 2645001 - 2650000 2646, 410
1,365 13,334,250
Categores of Shareholders Mumber of Shareholders Numbelr-lzldehEFES Percentagel %1
SPONSORS, DIRECTORS, THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDREM 11 7,038,193 5278
BANE, OF| & MNEFI 4 1,667 828 12.43
HSURANCE COMPANIES 1 341 693 256
WODARABAS & MUTLAL FUND G 343,018 AT
FOREIGH COMPANIES T 5,905 0.04
OTHERS 0 1,920171 14.40
GEMERABL PUELIC
- LOGAL 1,158 1,973,325 14.80
-- FOREIGH 168 4,117 0.4

1,365 13,334,250 100.00
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AS AT JUNE 30, 2019
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS A SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE [%
SHUREHOLOERS (%]
DIRECTORS, AND THEIR SPOUSES SND MINOR-CHILDREN 11 7,028 193 52 78
1 MR, RATAK BENGALI 1,671,071
3 MRS, GUL BAND RAZAK 452 083
3 MR, MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUEMISRI 2 646 410
4 MRS, MEHTAB BIBI 437 201
& MRS, SABA NADEEM 500D
B MR MUHAAD RFAN GHANI 1,240 050
7 MRE. KALSAR IRFAN £5 478
8 bR, ANIS WUAHAR TUBERI 500
4 MR, SYED HARDDN RASHID 500
10 MR MUHAMAD JA/ED £00
11 IRFAN SHMED QURESHI 500
EiHE, DFI & HEFI 4 1,657 328 12 459
1 COC-TRUSTEE MATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNITI TRUST 1,338 360
2 PRUDENTIAL INVESTMENT BANK LIMITED 575
3 MATIOMAL BANK OF PAKISTAN g3
4 HATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 538 000
INSURBHCE COMPAINES 1 241 gz 2 5604
| STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 41 Bz
MODARBESS & MUTUAL FUND § 343,018 2 579
1 COC-TRUSTEE MAFA STOCK FUND £7.000
7 COC-TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFAFUND 34 500
3 COC-TRUSTEE HIT-EQUITY MARKET OFFORTUNITY FUND 4,000
4 COC- TRUSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 7 500
5§ COC-TRUSTEE HAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 10,000
§ GEWERAL MODARABA SERVICES (FYT) LTD 12
FOREIGH COMPANIES 7 5305 0.04%
1| ROYALBAHK OF SCOTLAND 1538
3 BAMK OF SCOTLAND 718
3 BANKERS TRUST COMPANY a6
4 MORGAN STANLEY BANK LUXEMBOURG 1552
5 MORGAN STAMLEY TRUST COMPANY 718
§ CROSBY SECURITIES PTE LTD, gz
7 SOMERS HOMINEES (FAR EAST) LTD. 500
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

OTHERS 20 1920471 14.40%
1 WS HATIOMAL MOTORS LIMITED 20

2 HATIOMAL DEY FINAHCE CORP.INVESTERS 433

3 BOLAN CASTINGS LIMITED 187 500

4 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMITED 715

5 AZIZFIDAHUSEIM & COMPANY (PWT) LTO. 40

i SIEZAPRIATE) LTO 2,000

¥ LOADS LIMITED a0

2 TRUSTEE NATIOMAL BAME OF PAKISTAM BWPLOYEES PEMSION FUND 145 56

4 TRUSTEE NATIOMAL BAME OF PAKISTAM BWP BEWEWVOLEMT FUND TRUST 5,103

10, %.H. BURHARI SECURITIES (P%T) LIMITED a6

11 UHF COMSULTING(PRI"ATE) LIMITED o0

12 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1

13 MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 1,282 828

14 TRUSTEES OF PAKISTAM MOBILE COMMUNICATION LTD - PROMVIDENT FUMND 5,000

15 MUHAWRAD AHRED MADEBW SECURITIES (SMC-PT) LIMITED 2587

16 hAShAMLAR FINANCLALS (PWT) LTO. 144

17 SEWEN STAR SECURITIES (PT) LTD 11,5000

18 FIKREES (SMC-PYT) LTO. 201

19 COC-TRUSTEE HAFA PEMEION FUND EQLITY SUB-FUMD ACCOUNT 28,500

0 COC- TRUSTEE HAFAISLAWIC PENSION FUND EQUITY ACCOUNT 82,5008
GENERAL PUBLIC 1.316 2027 442 1i.20%
1 GEMERAL PUBLIC - LOCAL 1,973,325

2 BGENERAL PUBLIC- FOREIGH a4,117

1365 12,234,230 100%

SHAREHOLDERS HOLOIMG FIVE FERCENT OR MORE [ 2,073 B1E E0.59%

WOTING INTEREST |NMTHE COMPAHY

1 MUHAwRAAD SIDEIUEMISRI 2,646 410
2 RAZARBENGALI 1,571,871
3 CODC-TRUSTEE MATIOMAL INVESTMENT (LINIT) TRUST 1,328 260
4 MILLAT TRACTORS LIMITED 1,282 825

5 hiHAWRAAD IRF AR GHAM] 1,244,050
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 39th Annual General Meeting of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited will be held on Saturday, October 26, 2019 at 11:00 am ar Company’'s
Registered Office, Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, District Lasbella, Baluchistan ro
transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSIMNESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 25,
2019,

2. To receive, copsider and adopr the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports for the year ended June 30, 2019,

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs.2 ( 20 %) per share
for the year ended June 30, 2019 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint statutory auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2020 and |
fix their remuneration.

OTHER BUSINESS

5. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

A~

Muhammad Asad Saced
Company Secretary
Karachi: September 19, 2019

hrwl Pgor, State Uity Bulkging Mo 3, D Tiaddaiin Alawed REood, Fasschi -TESM0 (Faldetam)
Preans (0FF | (b31) MEEIATL, I508T500. ISEHE0S0. Fua  E1-J1-25ER4001
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NOTES:
1. Closure of Share Transfer Books

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be
accepted for registration from October 19, 2019 to October 26, 2019 (both days inclusive).
Transfer received in order at the Shares Department of M/s THE Associates (Pvt) Limited, 1
Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S. Karachi-75530, Pakistan, at the close of business on
October 18, 2019 will be treated in time for the purpose of payment of final cash dividend, if
approved by the shareholders.

2. Participation in the Annual General Mecting:

A member entitled to attend and vore ar the meeting is entitled to appoint any other member
as his / her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the
Head Office of the Company. duly stamped and signed nat less than 48 hours before the time
of holding the meeting. A member cannot appoint more than one proxy

CDC Account Holders will further have o follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid |
down by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). [

A. For Attending the Meeting:

i. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as
per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original
CNIC, or eriginal passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii. Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to
bring their particulars, ID number and account number in Central Depository

System (CDS).
ui. In case of corporate entities, the Board of Director's resolution / power of attorney

with specimen signature of the nominces shall be produced (unless it has been
provided earlier) at the time of attending the meeting,

B. For Appointing Proxies:

i. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as

per the regularions, shall submir the proxy form as per the above requirements.
Q First Fhsw, Stwte Lifw Buliding Noo 2, Or. Zleasddin Anmed Rosd, Karschi -7 5330 (Peicetan)

Prone (D) (021) J8B804TA, ISEETIOC, FOHSTS0. Fax - 52-21-25884003

— Fastary o Mhain SCD Mgy, Myl O hownl, DTSt Lasbsits Bamotermn
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. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

ui.  Anested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

iv.  The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the
meeting,.

v.  In case of corporate entities, the Board of Director's resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature of the person nominated to present and vote on behalf of
the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
alongwith the proxy form ro the Company.

3. CNIC on Electronic Dividend (Mandato

a. Asper SRO. §31(1)/2012 dated 5th July 2012, and other relevant rules, the electronic
Dividend should also bear the CNIC Number of the registered shareholder or the
authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate sharcholder(s).

b. As per Regulation no 4 & 6 of SRO 1145 (1)/2017 dated 6th November 2017, the
Company shall be constrained to withhold the payment of Dividend 1o the
shareholders, in case of non-availability of identification number (CNIC or National
Tax Number] of the shareholder or authorized person.

¢. Accordingly, the shareholders, who have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC
or NTN, are once again requested to immediately submit the same to the Share

Registrar, M/s THE Associates (Pvt) Limited.

4, Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory)

a. In accordance with SECP Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated 1st August 2017 and the
instructions related to distribution of dividend indicated in Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulation, 2017 and section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, every
listed company is required to ensure that with effect from 1st November 2017 the
cash dividends shall be paid through electronic mode only. Therefore, shareholders are
requested to provide the details of their Bank mandate specifying: (i) Title of account,
(if) Account number (iii} IBAN number (iv)Bank name and (v) Branch name, code and
address to the Company Share Registrar. Those share- holders who hold shares adith
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participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide
the same 1o their concerned participant / CDC.

b. Please note that as per Section 243 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed Companies

are entitled to withhold payment of dividend, if necessary information is not provided
by the sharcholders.

c. For the convenience of shareholders, e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on
Company's website http:// www.bwheels.com

5. Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001 (Mandatory)

a. Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act, 2019 effective July 01,2019 the rate of
deduction of income tax from dividend payment under section 150 of the income 1ax
ordinance ,2001 have been received as follows:

(1) For Active Tax Payer: 15%
(i)  For Mon- Active Tax Payer: 30%

b. Shareholders whose names are not appearing in the Active Tax-payers List [ATL] are
advised to immediately make necessary arrangement to make them active. Otherwise,
tax on their cash dividend will be deducted as per rules

¢. Further according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR),
withholding tax will be determined separately on “Active/Non-Active” status of
principal shareholder as well as Joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding

proportions, in case of joint accounts,

d. In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide
shareholding propertions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of
shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

c Fobo / DS | Toeat Principal Sharchokder Joint Sharcholder
Nnmaei 4 Account # | Shares |-ame and | Sharehokding proportion | Name and | Sharcholding proportion ||
“E'NIC No. (Mo. of Shares) s CNIC Mo, . of Shares} .|

e. The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of issue of
this notice; otherwise it will be assumed thar the shares are equally held by Principal
shareholder and Joint Holder(s).
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f. The corporate shareholders, having CDC accounts, are requested to have their
National Tax Number (NTIN) updated with their respective participants.

- Awvailability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website:

a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 and 237 of the Companies Act
2017, the audited financial statements of the Company for the year, which ended on
30th June 2019, are available on the Company's website hup:// www.bwheels.com

b. In accordance with SRO 470(1)/2016 dated 31" May 2016, SECP has allowed the
Companies to circulate the annual audited accounts to its members through CD /
DVD / USB instead of transmitting the hard copies at their registered addresses.
However, if any sharehelder, in addition, desires to get the hard copy of Annual
Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven
working days of receipt of such request.

c. For convenience of sharcholders, a “Standard Request Form” for provision of
Annual Audited Financial Accounts is available on the Company's website hup://
www. bwheels.com

. Video Conference

a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 132 and 134 of the Companies Act,
2017, on the demand, received ar least seven days before the date of meeung, of
members residing in a city, who held at least 10% or more share- holding, video-link
facility will be provided to such members enabling them to participate in the Annual
General Meeting. They will be entertained subject to availability of such facility in that
city

b. Subject to the fulfilment of the above conditions, members shall be informed of the
venue, 2 days before the date of the General Meeting along with complete informanon
necessary to access the facility.

¢. For convenience of shareholders, a2 "Consent Form”™ for provision of Video link

facility is available on the Company's website.
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8. E-Voting
Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section

143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot)
Regulations 2018,

9. Change of Address:

Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses immediately to the
Company’s Share Registrar,

Transport will be provided to members only from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building
to attend the meeting. Departure from Stock Exchange Building will be at 10:00 am
sharp.

(Members are requested to bring their Original CNIC / Original Passport at the time of
artending the meeting).

*Proxy Form is enclosed
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DUSINSES

The Board of Directors and the Managerment of the Baluchistan Wheels Limited shall endeavor to conduct the Business of
the Company in the most competitive manner and follow: all the Morms and Laws applicakble in the country and be Judicious

ifi the dayto day affairs of the Company and adoptthe following significant policesin its true spirit.

Explanation:
Significant policies forthis purpose mayinclude:
RiskManagement.
Humah Resource Management including preparation of a Succession Plan,
Frocurermentof Goods and Senices.
Marketing.
Determination ofterms of Credit and Dizcountto Customers.
Wirite-off of badf doubtfull Debts, Advances and Receivables.
Acguisitionf Disposal of Fixed Assets,
Investments.
Borrowwing of Moneys and the amountin excess of which Borrowings shall be Sanctioned’ Ratified by a general meeting of
Shareholders.
Oonations, Ghatities, Sontrinutions and other payments ofa similarnature including Carparate Social Responsibilities.
Determination and Delegation of Financial Powers.
Transactions or Contracts with Associated Companies and Related Paries.
Health, Safety, and Environment.
Strictly avoiding questionahle and improper payiments or misuse of company's Funds fAssets

Thewhistle Blower Palicy
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Proxy Form
E,l' We, of
(Full address) being a member (s) of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited and holding of Shares under Folio Mo, and/for CDC
farticipant’s 1D No and Sub Afc Mo, hereby
appotnt M/ Mrs fMiss, of
..... B | (Full address). Folio Mo, .

ancd/for  CDC Parbicipant’s 10 No and Sub Afc
Mt ar failing him/her Mr, / Mrs, [/ Miss

ol (Full address), Folio
M and/ or CDC Participant’s [D Mo _ and
Sub Afc No.__ s my [/ our Proxy in my |/ our absence to attend and vote for me [/

usand on my £ our behall at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 260 day of October
2019 at 11:00 am ai Registered Office and at any adjournment thereof,

As witness my four hand this day af — = 2019

Please affix
Rs. 5/- Revenue
Stamp

signature of Member (s)

Wikngss: Witness:

MNami: Mamer

CNIC No:; CNIC Nao: ==
Add ress: Acldress:

1. Amember entitled toattend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint

another member as his/her proxy to attend and volbe instead of his/ her, No person shall act as proxy

{exeepl o a Corporation) unless hef she is entitled to be present and vote in his/her own right.

The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member(s) or by his/her attorney duly

authorized, inwriting. or if the member is a Corporation/ Company either under the common seal, or under

the hand of an officer or attormey so authorized

3 This Proxy Form duly completed must be deposited at the Head Oificer of the Company, 1% Floor, Stale
Life Building # 3. Dr. Ziduddin Ahmed Road, Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
mecting,

fud

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES

CRCE Sharcholder and their proxies must cach attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized MNational
Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form,

The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC number shall be
mentionded on the form.

Incase of Corparate Entity, the Board of Directors Resolution/ Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall
bir submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the Company,
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Dear Shareholder(s)

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

In pursuance of Section 242 ol the Companies Act, 2017, it s now mandatory for all listed companles to pay
dividend only by way of electronle mode, directly into the bank accounts of entitled shareholders.

Keeping in view the same, all cash dividend, if declared by the Company in future will be directly transferred in
bank-account, In order to enable us to follow the directives of the regulators in regard to payment of dividend
only through electronic mode, you are requested to please provide/update your bank account details in below
mentioned farmat
1. | hereby authorize Baluchistan Wheels Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if
any, in the below mentioned bank accaunt,

Bank Account Details of Transfer for Cash Dividend
*{Mandatory to provide)

i) Shareholder’s Detail

Mame of Company

Mame of shareholder

Folia Ne. fCDC Participants ID Afc No.
CNIE No*

Passport Mo, (in case of foreign
shareholder)*™

Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

i) Shareholder’s Bank Detail

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Mumber (IBAN)
Mandatory

Bank's Name

Branch Name And Address

2. Itis stated that the above-mentioned Infarmation is correct, that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentionad information 1o the above addresses as soon as these occur.

{Signature of sharehalder)

EINDLY NOTE. COMPANY MAY WITHHOLD THE PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND OF A MEMBER WHERE THE MEMBER
HAS NOT PROVIDED THE COMPLETE INFORMATION OR DOCUMENTS AS SPECIFIED,

The shareholders who hold shares in Central Depository Company are requested to submit the above
mentioned dividend mandate form after duly filled in to their participants/investor account services of the
central depository company limited.

The shareholder who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above-mentioned dividend
mandate form after duly filled in to Company's registrar office, as mentioned below:

Mys THE Associates [Py} Limited

1" Flogr, 40-C, Block &,

P.E.C.H.5, Karachi-75400

Far any query, you may please contact on Tel 8 021-111-000-322 or email at sfc@thk.com.pk
Thanking you.

Mr. Muhammad Acad Saced
[Company Secretary)

Mote: This i5 a computer generated letter and does not requine signature
*Pleaye attach attested photocopy of CHIC
**Please attach atested photacapy of the Passport
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